ELECTRONIC PACKET
NOVEMBER 13, 2017 POLICY, FINANCE, & PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING

RELEASED: Monday, November 6, 2017



Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District *°"g. ="

Milwaukee, WI

Meeting Agenda

Policy, Finance & Personnel Committee

Eugene Manzanet, Chair
Kathy Ehley, Vice Chair
James A. Bohl, José G. Pérez, John Swan, lll
John R. Hermes, Ex-Officio

Monday, November 13, 2017 9:05 AM Dennis M. Grzezinski Conference Room

NOTICE 1S HEREBY GIVEN, pursuant to Section 19.84, Wisconsin Statutes, that the Milwaukee
Metropolitan Sewerage District's Policy, Finance and Personnel Committee will hold its regularly
scheduled public meeting on Monday, November 13, 2017 at 9:05 a.m. or immediately following
the Operations Committee meeting which begins at 9:00 a.m. at the District's Headquarters, 260
W. Seeboth Street, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, in the Dennis M. Grzezinski Conference Room.

PURSUANT TO SECTION 19.85(1)(g), Wisconsin Statutes, the Committee reserves the right to
go into Closed Session on any item on the public portion of the agenda to confer with Legal
Counsel when it appears the matter may involve the District in litigation. [f the Committee does
convene in such a Closed Session, it is contemplated that the Committee will again, before
adjourning the meeting, reconvene at the same place in Open Session at which time the
Committee may act upon any item(s) considered in the Closed Session and upon any unfinished
items from the regular agenda.

CALL TO ORDER
RECORD ROLL
Approval of Proceedings of Regular Committee Meeting held October 9, 2017

NEW BUSINESS

4 17-110-11 Authorizing 2018 Capital Charges to Non-Member Communities

5 17-111-1 Update of Cost Recovery Procedures Manual, Including 2018 User Charge
Rates

6 17-112-11 Declaration of the Public Necessity and Approval of the Acquisition Plat

(Relocation Order) for the Permanent Pigging Station for the Landfill Gas
Pipeline, Project P02003

7 17-113-11 Authorizing and Providing for the Sale and Issuance of Two Series of
General Obligation Sewerage System Promissory Notes, Levying Taxes
for the Payment Thereof, and All Related Details

Requires a 2/3 Affirmative Vote of the Commission for Adoption

Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District Page 1 Printed on 10/31/2017



Policy, Finance & Personnel Meeting Agenda November 13, 2017
Committee

8 17-114-11 Authorizing the Executive Director to Extend the Contracts for Prescription
Drug and Supplemental Medical Coverage for Post Medicare Retirees

9 17-115-11 Authorizing the Executive Director to Enter into a Contract for Pharmacy
Benefit Management Services with Optum Rx Effective January 1, 2018

10 17-116-11 Authorizing the Executive Director to Extend a One-year Contract for Life
Insurance Benefits to Humana Effective January 1, 2018, through
December 31, 2018

11 17-117-11 Destruction of District Records Pursuant to Commission Policy 1-76.04,
Records Retention Policy

12 17-118-11 An Agreement for the Establishment of Sister Utilities Relationship
between the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District and the Beijing
Water Authority of the People’s Republic of China

ORGANIZATION & ADMINISTRATION
17-002-1 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

A. Monthly Reports

ADJOURNMENT

PLEASE NOTE: Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of
disabled individuals through sign language interpreters or other auxiliary aids. For additional
information or to request these services, contact the Office of the Commission at (414)
225-2088, (FAX) (414) 272-5057 or write to Office of the Commission, 260 W. Seeboth Street,
Milwaukee, Wisconsin, 53204-1446.

Anna Kettlewell, ngmission Secretary
Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District

Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District Page 2 Printed on 10/31/2017



Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District 2> o,

Milwaukee, WI
53204

£ MMSD

PRATHIQN 1K & G 2MER (ATiRQNMERT

Meeting Minutes

Policy, Finance & Personnel
Committee

Eugene Manzanet, Chair
Kathy Ehley, Vice Chair
James A. Bohl, José G. Pérez, John Swan, il
John R. Hermes, Ex-Officio

Monday, October 9, 2017 9:05 AM Dennis M. Grzezinski Conference Room

CALL TO ORDER

Committee Chair Commissioner Manzanet called the meeting to order at 9:35 a.m.

RECORD ROLL

Present 5- James A. Bohl, Kathy Ehley, John R. Hermes, Eugene Manzanet, and John
Swan [il

Excused 1- Jose G. Pérez

Other Commissioners Present: Dan Devine and Carl Krueger.

Approval of Proceedings of Regular Committee Meeting held September 11,
2017

A motion was made by Commissioner Bohl, seconded by Commissioner Ehley.
The motion carried.

NEW BUSINESS

5 17-098-10 Adopting the Operations and Maintenance Budget for the 2018 Fiscal
Year

The Committee received a presentation from Mark Kaminski, Director of
Finance/Treasurer.

Mark Kaminski presented Operations and Maintenance Budget Amendment One,
which would provide $15,000 for advertising and outreach costs for prescription drug
mail back programs, with comments by Kevin L. Shafer, P.E., Executive Director, and
Commissioner Bohl. It was moved by Commissioner Bohl, seconded by
Commissioner Manzanet, to approve Amendment One. The motion carried by a
unanimous voice vote.

A motion was made by Commissioner Bohl, seconded by Commissioner Ehiey,
that this matter be approved as amended by a voice vote. The motion carried
by a unanimous voice vote.

Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District Page 1



Policy, Finance & Personnel Meeting Minutes October 9, 2017
Committee

6 17-099-10 Adopting the Capital Budget for the 2018 Fiscal Year

The Committee received a presentation from Mark Kaminski, Director of
Finance/Treasurer.

Mark Kaminski presented Capital Budget Amendment One, which would incorporate a
change in the nonmember billings for the Green Infrastructure Credit to nonmember
communities. It was moved by Commissioner Swan, seconded by Commissioner
Bohi, to approve Amendment One. The motion carried by a unanimous voice vote.

Mark Kaminski presented Capital Budget Amendment Two, which would accelerate
Project M03102, Advanced Biosolids Planning, in the 2018 budget rather than the 2019
budget. It was moved by Commissioner Hermes, seconded by Commissioner Ehley,

to approve Amendment Two. The motion carried by a unanimous voice vote.

A motion was made by Commissioner Manzanet, seconded by Commissioner
Swan, that this matter be approved as amended by a voice vote. The motion
carried by a unanimous voice vote.

7 17-100-10 Levying of Taxes for the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District
Capital Purposes for the 2018 Fiscal Year

The Committee received a presentation from Mark Kaminski, Director of
Finance/Treasurer.

A motion was made by Commissioner Bohl, seconded by Commissioner Ehley,
that this matter be approved by a voice vote. The motion carried by a
unanimous voice vote.

8 17-101-10 Approve Updates to Commission Policy 1-15.02, Capital Budget

The Committee received a presentation from Mark Kaminski, Director or
Finance/Treasurer.

A motion was made by Commissioner Swan, seconded by Commissioner Bohl,
that this matter be approved by a voice vote. The motion carried by a
unanimous voice vote.

9 17-102-10 Declaration of Excess Lands and Authorization to Transfer Seven
Greenseams® Purchased Properties

The Committee received a PowerPoint presentation from Steve Jacquart,
Intergovermmental Coordinator.

A motion was made by Commissioner Bohl, seconded by Commissioner Swan,
that this matter be approved by a voice vote. The motion carried by a
unanimous voice vote.

Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District Page 2



Policy, Finance & Personnel Meeting Minutes October 9, 2017
Committee

10 17-103-10 Award of Contract M01031C01, Central Laboratory Heating, Ventilation,
and Air Conditioning Chiller Replacement

The Committee received a presentation from Anna Kettlewell, Commission
Secretary/Executive Administrator.

A motion was made by Commissioner Bohl, seconded by Commissioner Ehley,
that this matter be approved by a voice vote. The motion carried by a
unanimous voice vote.

1 17-104-10 Authorization of a Public Hearing Regarding Proposed Amendments to
MMSD Rules, Chapter 11, Discharge Regulations and Enforcement
Procedures, to Allow the Discharge of Noncontact Cooling Water

The Committee received a presentation from Sharon Mertens, Director of Water
Quality Protection.

A motion was made by Commissioner Bohl, seconded by Commissioner Swan,
that this matter be approved by a voice vote. The motion carried by a
unanimous voice vote.

12 17-105-10 Approval of Job Content Value and Job Title

The Committee received a presentation from Candace Richards, Human Resources
Manager.

A motion was made by Commissioner Swan, seconded by Commissioner
Ehley, that this resolution be adopted by a voice vote. The motion carried by a
unanimous voice vote.

ORGANIZATION & ADMINISTRATION

17-002-1 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT
A. Monthly Reports

B. 2018 Budget Update (Mark Kaminski & Mickie Pearsall)
A. No report.

B. No report.

ADJOURNMENT

It was moved by Commissioner Bohl, seconded by Commissioner Swan, to adjoumn.
The motion carried.

As there was no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 10:12 a.m.

Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District Page 3



Policy, Finance & Personnel Meeting Minutes October 9, 2017
Committee

Bk DALt

Anna Kettlewell?oﬁwmission Secretary
Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District

Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District Page 4



Ak

PARTNERS FOR A CLEANER ENVIRONMENT Item 4

COMMISSION FILE NO: 17-110-11 DATE INTRODUCED:  November 13, 2017

INTRODUCED BY: Executive Director (Signature on File in the Office of the Commission)

REFERRED BY COMMISSION CHAIRPERSON TO: Policy, Finance, and Personnel Committee

RELATING TO:  Authorizing 2018 Capital Charges to Non-Member Communities

SUMMARY:

The Commission is requested to authorize the Executive Director to transmit bills for 2018 capital
charges to customer communities outside the District.

Annually, the District bills customer communities outside the District's boundaries (non-member
communities) for their share of capital budget expenditures. Since September 6, 1984, when
the Commission adopted a policy specifying a system of uniform charges, the District's charges
have been based on the equalized valuation of property.

On September 11, 1996, the Public Service Commission ruled that capital charges related to
watercourse improvement projects can only be collected from those non-member communities
that are partially or wholly within an affected watercourse's drainage basin. In September 2017,
the Commission amended Commission Policy 1-11.05, MMSD Infrastructure Includes Green
Infrastructure, (Resolution 17-086-09) to allow financial billing credits to non-member
communities that opt out of the green infrastructure (Gl) program. The non-member communites
which have opted out of Gl for the 2018 Budget are the City of Brookfield, Village of Butler,
Village of Caledonia, Village of EIm Grove, Village of Germantown, Village of Menomonee Falls,
City of New Berlin, and Village of Thiensville. These actions require annual modifications to the
amounts charged these communities.

Staff recommends that the Executive Director be authorized to bill the non-member communities
for 2018 and to provide the appropriate credits.

ATTACHMENTS: BACKGROUND [ ] KEY ISSUES [ ] RESOLUTION [X]
FISCAL NOTE[ ] S/W/MBE[ ] OTHER [X] capital Rate Chart

PFP_CapitalChargesNonMemberCommunities2018_legislative_file.docx
10-30-17

COMMITTEE ACTION: DATE:

COMMISSION ACTION: DATE:




SUMMARY (Cont’d)

Authorizing 2018 Capital Charges to Non-Member Communities

The amount of the credits for watercourse and flood management and Gl projects is
based on the 2018 budgeted amounts for these projects. The District will issue an
additional charge or credit to each non-member community in the year 2020 for 2018
capital charges, after the actual expenditures for 2018 are finalized. The District will use
the same equalized value in calculating this charge or credit as was used in calculating
the 2018 capital charge.

As shown in Table 1, estimated 2018 capital charges of $30.6 million to non-member
communities represent a decrease of 0.8% or $256,106 from the 2017 level of $30.9
million. The estimated billing decrease of $256,106 reflects the following factors:

e 3.6% Increase in Non-Member Equalized Value $1,114,977
e 1.4% Decrease in District Tax Rate ($1.75 to $1.73) ($534,622)
e Green Infrastructure Credit ($677,483)
e Change in Watercourse Credit $820,662
e Decrease from Prior Year Adjustment ($979,640)
Estimated Decrease in Capital Charges ($256,106)

Non-member tax rates for 2018 capital charges are expected to range from $1.38 to
$1.48/$1,000 equalized value, as compared to the $1.73 tax rate billed to member
communities.

In future years, projected watercourse and flood management and green infrastructure
credits are expected to keep the capital rates for non-member communities below the
rate charged to District member communities. The attached chart, “Capital Rate for Non-
Member Communities”, shows the weighted average annual capital rate for these
communities as a whole from 2014 through 2017 with projections through 2023. The
average capital rate of $1.447/$1,000 equalized value for non-member communities in
2018 reflects the 1.4% decrease in the 2017 District tax levy for 2018 purposes. The
District tax levy is projected to increase 4.0% for 2019 and each year thereafter with
property values in member and non-member communities increasing 2.5% and 2.6%
respectively per year for 2019 and each year thereatfter.

District staff either e-mailed or met with municipal officials of non-member communities
in September and October to brief them on capital rate projections in the District's
proposed 2018 Capital Budget and long-range financing plan.



SUMMARY (Cont’d)

Authorizing 2018 Capital Charges to Non-Member Communities

Table 1

2018 Estimated Capital Charges*

Capital Charges for 2018
From 2018 From 2016
2017 Capital Budgeted Watercourse 2018 Capital Percentage
Municipality Charges Expenditures | Adjustment** | Charges Total Change
Village of Butler $329,083 $327,616 ($19,772) $307,844 -6.5%
Village of Caledonia $51,588 $49,924 ($2,412) $47,512 -7.9%
Village of EIm Grove $1,587,541 $1,664,773 ($43,809) $1,620,964 2.1%
Village of Germantown $3,177,394 $3,242,204 ($182,050) $3,060,154 -3.7%
Village of Menomonee $5,561,266 $5,697,377 ($319,460) $5,377,917 -3.3%
Falls
Village of Thiensville $447,381 $427,732 ($17,648) $410,084 -8.3%
City of Brookfield $3,908,620 $3,996,910 ($105,976) $3,890,934 -0.5%
City of Mequon $5,749,599 $5,974,305 ($285,046) $5,689,259 -1.0%
City of Muskego $3,800,216 $3,903,770 ($196,495) $3,707,275 -2.4%
City of New Berlin $6,264,312 $6,697,614 ($188,665) $6,508,949 3.9%
Total $30,876,998 $31,982,226 ($1,361,333) $30,620,892 -0.8%
* 2018 Capital Charges will be finalized by early December, following determination of equalized
property values for municipalities partially serviced by the District.
** The 2016 adjustment reflects the difference between credits based on budgeted watercourse and

flood management expenditures for 2016 compared to credits based on actual watercourse and
flood management expenditures in 2016. The 2016 adjustment was calculated using equalized
values in effect for 2016 billings.




RESOLUTION

Authorizing 2018 Capital Charges to Non-Member Communities

RESOLVED, by the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage Commission, that

(1) The Executive Director is authorized to transmit bills for 2018 capital charges
to non-member customer communities, i.e., those outside the District boundary,
calculated in accordance with the method adopted by the Commission on
September 6, 1984, which shall also reflect appropriate credits for watercourse
improvements as ordered by the Wisconsin Public Service Commission on
September 11, 1996; and

(2) That the 2018 capital charge billings to the non-member communities shall
also reflect appropriate credits for Green Infrastructure Program expenditures for
the non-member customer communities which have formally opted out of the
District’'s Green Infrastructure Program in accord with Commission Policy 1-11.05;
these non-member customer communities are the City of Brookfield, Village of
Butler, Village of Caledonia, Village of EIm Grove, Village of Germantown, Village
of Menomonee Falls, City of New Berlin, and Village of Thiensville; and

(3) The Executive Director is authorized to issue an additional charge or credit on
the capital charges for the year 2020, after the actual 2018 watercourse/flood
management and green infrastructure expenditures are finalized, using the same
equalized values used in calculating the 2018 capital charges.



Capital Rate Chart

$2.00

$1.80

$1.60

$1.40

$1.20

$1.00

$0.80

$0.60

$0.40

$0.20

$0.00

$0.235

2014
Billed

Weighted Average Capital Rate per $1,000 of Equalized Value from 2014
through 2023 for Non-Member Communities

$0.153 $0.225 0.240
® $0.279 $0.317 $0.317 $0.396 $0.484

$0.554

$1.511

$1.447 $1.434

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Billed Billed Billed Budget Est. Est. Est. Est. Est.
m Billed Rate Rate Credit




PARTNERS FOR A CLEANER ENVIRONMENT ltem 5

COMMISSION FILE NO:  17-111-11 DATE INTRODUCED:  November 13, 2017

INTRODUCED BY: Executive Director (Signature on File in the Office of the Commission)

REFERRED BY COMMISSION CHAIRPERSON TO: Policy, Finance, and Personnel Committee

RELATING TO:  Update of Cost Recovery Procedures Manual, Including 2018 User Charge
Rates

SUMMARY:

The Commission is requested to adopt revisions to Sections 1, 2, 3, 5, 10, 11, 12, 13, and 14
and the attached tables (2-1, 3-1 through 3-5, and 5-1) of the Cost Recovery Procedures
Manual, including 2018 user charge rates. The Commission is also requested to authorize the
Executive Director to transmit the Cost Recovery Procedures Manual to the User Charge
Administrator of each municipality served by the District.

The estimated average household charge for District member communities is expected to
increase 10.7% in 2018. The following table summarizes the estimated annual residential user
charge over the last five years:

ESTIMATED

AVERAGE HOUSEHOLD CHARGE PERCENT CHANGE
YEAR PER YEAR FROM PRIOR YEAR
2018 $137.37 10.7%
2017 $124.04 1.3%
2016 $122.42 -2.2%
2015 $125.17 3.7%
2014 $120.68 2.1%
2013 $118.20 0.2%

ATTACHMENTS: BACKGROUND [ ] KEY ISSUES [X] RESOLUTION [X
FISCAL NOTE[ ] S/W/MBE[ ] OTHER [X] Tables, Schedules, etc.

PFP_User_Charge_Rates2018TableSchedules_legislative_file.docx
10-27-17

COMMITTEE ACTION: DATE:

COMMISSION ACTION: DATE:




SUMMARY (Cont’d)

Update of Cost Recovery Procedures Manual, Including 2018 User Charge Rates

The Cost Recovery Procedures Manual is a document incorporated by reference in
Chapter 17, District Rules and Regulations, which presents specific policies and
procedures for the administration of the User Charge Program. An annual update of this
manual and revisions to seven sections are required to assure that the collection
mechanism for the Operations and Maintenance Budget is based on current data.



KEY ISSUES

Update of Cost Recovery Procedures Manual, Including 2018 User Charge Rates

The staff requests adoption of the following revised Sections and Tables:

1 Equivalent Residential Unit
2 Residential Occupancy Factors, Table 2-1
3 Unit Process - Parameter Relationships, Tables 3-1 - Tables 3-5
5 Municipal Wholesale Billings — Table 5-1
10 Unit Costs of Treatment
11 Pretreatment Program and Monitoring Charges
12 Late Payment Penalty
13 Charges for Special Waste
14 Household Hazardous Waste Program Costs

Attached are schedules showing 2018 User Charge Rate Analysis vs Approved 2017
Rate (Schedule A), Annual Single Family Household Charge by Community (Schedule
B), Estimated Total Billings by Community (Schedule C), and Percent of Estimated
Billings by Class of User (Schedule D).

A brief explanation of the revisions to those sections affecting 2018 user charge rates and
billings is as follows:

Section 1: Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU)

Water consumption is projected to be 52 gallons per capita per day in 2018, as compared
to 53 gallons per capita per day in 2017 (Schedule B).

Section 2: Residential Occupancy Factors

This includes an updated table of residential occupancy factors based on current
population and household unit data in each municipality. Table 2-1 lists people per unit
for 2017 and 2018. This factor is used in the formula for calculating the wholesale
residential bill to each municipality.

Section 3: Unit Process - Parameter Relationships

The District's User Charge System allocates operation and maintenance costs of each
unit process, including all supporting activities, to four user charge parameters: Flow,
Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD), Total Suspended Solids (TSS), and Connections.

Tables 3-1 and 3-2 detail the allocation, among charge parameters, of costs expected to
be incurred by each of the District’s unit processes during 2018, offsetting revenues from
other sources, and adjustments to account for surpluses or deficits on each parameter in
2016 carried forward to 2018.



KEY ISSUES (Cont’d)

Update of Cost Recovery Procedures Manual, Including 2018 User Charge Rates

On September 11, 1996, the Public Service Commission ruled that capital cost recovery
charges related to watercourse improvement projects can only be collected from those
extraterritorial municipalities that are tributary to the watercourse being improved.

Table 3-3 summarizes the 2018 budgeted dollars by watercourse and green infrastructure
and the municipalities impacted by each watercourse green infrastructure. Table 3-4
portrays the total flow rate by adding the base flow rate (Table 3-2) and the watercourse
rate (Table 3-3) and the green infrastructure rate (Table 3-3). In addition, Table 3-4
reports the volumetric charge and average household charge. Table 3-5 shows the
current status of the User Charge Stabilization Fund.

Section 5: Municipal Wholesale Billing

Table 5-1 contains the Schedule for Transmission of User Data for each municipality for
the year 2018. This schedule was provided to each of the Municipal User Charge
Administrators within the past month for review and comment.

Section 10: Unit Costs of Treatment

This section contains the derivation of 2018 user charge rates. Projected 2018
wasteloads are listed for each parameter. Dividing budgeted dollars by these wasteloads
yields rates for each parameter. The old and new rates are as follows:

2017 2018
Flow (Base Rate): $1.09424/1000 gallon $1.20275/1000 gallon
Flow (Watercourse Rate): See Table 3-4 See Table 3-4
BOD: $0.12730/pound $0.13589/pound
TSS: $0.16289/pound $0.17541/pound
Connection Charge: $23.98/year $30.34/year

Section 11: Pretreatment Program and Monitoring Charges

This section contains the annual fees for waste strength verification, sampling, and
laboratory tests to recover the technical, monitoring, and laboratory costs of administering
the Industrial Waste Pretreatment Program.

Section 12: Late Payment Penalty

This section contains the rate charged for a late payment penalty for the year 2018.



KEY ISSUES (Cont’d)

Update of Cost Recovery Procedures Manual, Including 2018 User Charge Rates

Section 13: Charges for Special Waste

Septic and Holding Tank Waste

Staff recommends that the present disposal rates remain at $25.19 per thousand gallons
for holding tank waste, $33.15 per thousand gallons for septic tank waste, and a permit
fee of $250/vehicle. These costs provide for recovery of treatment costs and capital costs,
but only a portion of the program administration and compliance costs.

Rates for Groundwater Discharge

During 2018, staff recommends the rate to remain at $2.50 per 1,000 gallons
($0.0025/gallon).

Rates for Beneficial High Strength Waste

During 2018, the rate to discharge beneficial High Strength Waste at the South Shore
Water Reclamation Facility to be used for Anaerobic Co-Digestion will be $0.035 per
gallon unless otherwise negotiated by contract.

Miscellaneous Special Waste

This section contains how the District will establish charges for special waste according
to MMSD Rules, sec. 17.211.

Section 14: Household Hazardous Waste Program Costs

This section reflects the recovery of a separate municipal charge for Household
Hazardous Waste Program costs. The actual costs incurred in operating the Household
Hazardous Waste Program will be billed to each community on the basis of residential
units. The Household Hazardous Waste Program Charge for 2018 will be billed to each
participating community on or before March 1, 2019, and payable by April 1, 2019.



RESOLUTION

Update of Cost Recovery Procedures Manual, Including 2018 User Charge Rates

RESOLVED, by the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage Commission, that the revisions to
Sections 1, 2, 3, 5, 10, 11, 12, 13, and 14 of the Cost Recovery Procedures Manual,
including revisions to Table 2-1, Table 3-1, Table 3-2, Table 3-3, Table 3-4, Table 3-5,
and Table 5-1 (attached), are hereby adopted for the calendar year 2018, and that the
Executive Director shall incorporate these revisions and transmit the Cost Recovery
Procedures Manual to the User Charge Administrator of each municipality served by the
District.



Section: 1
Title: Equivalent Residential Unit
Reference: Secs. 17.103(9), 17.208, MMSD Rules, and Appendix A (1.)(A)

The residential user class accounts for a significant share of the total wastewater generated in the
service area. In accordance with EPA regulations, user charges must be apportioned to each of
these users or class of users on the basis of wastewater flow and strength discharged to the system.
Since it would not be reasonable to monitor each user to determine this flow and strength due to
the size of the class, the user charge will be based on the characteristics of a typical residential
discharge, called an Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU).

The U. S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has developed a standard ERU that should be
adopted unless other values can be supported by the District. This standard ERU is a flow of 100
gallons per capita/day (including Infiltration/Inflow), a BOD of 0.167 pounds per capita/day
(ppcd) (200 mg/1) and TSS of 0.209 pped (250 mg/l).

To determine the District's ERU, select portions of the service area were monitored during the dry
months of July and August of 1976, as part of the UC Study conducted for the District. Sampling
stations were chosen at points downstream of six strictly residential service areas that were
believed to represent the typical user.

In each of the six study areas, wastewater samples were collected every 15 minutes for an average
of 20 days. These samples were used to determine 24-hour composite values for BOD and TSS
for each study area. Flow rates were calculated from measurements recorded at existing gauging
stations.

The results were used to calculate average per capita wastewater characteristics. A detailed
description of this activity can be found in Technical Memorandum 4A of the UC/ICR Study.

The study yielded an ERU consisting of 64 gallons/capita/day (excluding Infiltration/Inflow), with
BOD of 0.166 pounds per capita/day (310 mg/l) and TSS of 0.197 pounds/capita/day (370 mg/l).

The calculated domestic flow rate compared very favorably with winter water consumption data.
With allowance for I/, BOD and TSS loadings compared favorably with EPA values. Conse-
quently, the aforementioned ERU values were used in the formula for calculating MMSD's user
charges to the constituent municipalities at start-up of the program in 1979.

I-1



Surveys conducted yearly of winter water consumption in municipalities with metered water,

provide a basis for updating the calculations for the flow parameter. The most recent calculation

supports an ERU of 52 gallons per capita per day.

The resultant EQUIVALENT RESIDENTIAL UNIT, effective January 2018, is as follows:
Domestic Flow 52 gallons/capita/day

(Excluding Infiltration/Inflow)

B.O.D. 0.165 pounds capita/day
(310 milligrams/liter)

T.S.S. 0.197 pounds/capita/day
(370 milligrams/liter)

1-2



Section: 2
Title: Residential Occupancy Factors
Reference: Secs. 17.103(18), 17.208, MMSD Rules, and Appendix A(1.0)(A)

The residential occupancy factor means the average number of people residing in each residential
housing unit. The 2018 residential occupancy factor assigned to each municipality is based on
housing and population data as of January 1, 2017, and further explained in Section 5 of this
manual.

MMSD relies on municipal user data transmissions and an annual housing unit survey to update
the housing unit count reported in the 2010 census. Municipal reports are subject to verification
by MMSD as explained in Section 8 of this manual.

Total municipal population as of January 1 is reported in October by the Wisconsin Department of
Administration. To determine a residential occupancy factor, total population must be allocated
between the residential and commercial sewer user classes. The residential allocation is derived
by subtracting commercial population from total population. Commercial population is classified
as follows:

®  Apartments - Occupancy factors and vacancy rates for metered apartments are from the
census. Occupancy factors for unmetered apartments served by MMSD are assigned as

follows:
Bedrooms People/Unit
1 1.5
2 25
3 Residential Occupancy Factor
Unknown 2.5

In lieu of using the assigned occupancy factor for apartments, a municipality may report
the actual occupant count for each unmetered apartment. This occupant count must
include all unmetered apartments and be updated at least once each year.

*  Mixed Apartment/Business - Includes apartments in mercantile buildings such as stores
or taverns. MMSD assigns an occupancy factor of 1.25 to these apartments. The rental
vacancy rate from the census is used to estimate the number of vacant units.

2-1



e Mobile Home Parks - Includes all mobile homes not classified residential. Occupancy
factors and vacancy rates are from the census.

e Group Quarters - Includes nursing homes, convents and monasteries, boarding houses,
correctional institutions, college dormitories and other facilities without separate living
and dining areas. Estimated population is based on the state report of institutional
population and municipal reports of other group quarters facilities. A factor of .75 people
per room is used to estimate boarding house population.

e Mixed Home/Business - Includes a business in the home classified as commercial for
sewer billing. These units are assigned the residential occupancy factor.

The Residential Occupancy Factor for the District is 2.62 people per unit, computed as follows:

2017 Population + Occupied Units =  People Per Unit

718,165 273,838 2.62
Occupied residential units represent residential units reported to MMSD on municipal data

transmissions including mixed home/business units. An update of the residential occupancy factor
for each municipality is listed in Table 2-1 on page 2-3.

2-2



Table 2-1 -- RESIDENTIAL OCCUPANCY FACTORS

People per Unit
Residential for UC Billings In:
Billing
Alternative Municipality 2017 2018
1 - 2 Family Bayside 244 242
Brookfield 2.53 2.55
Brown Deer 2.63 2.60
Caledonia 1.97 1.97
Fox Point 2.41 2.42
Franklin 2.82 2.84
Glendale 2.27 2.25
Muskego 2.70 2.69
New Berlin 2.63 2.60
Oak Creek 2.92 2.93
Thiensville 2.42 2.40
Wauwatosa 2.34 2.33
West Allis 2.29 2.24
West Milwaukee 2.52 2.50
1 - 4 Family Butler 2.07 2.06
Cudahy 2.30 2.30
Elm Grove 2.41 2.40
Germantown 2.49 2.45
Greendale 2.61 2.64
Greenfield 2.46 2.44
Hales Corners 2.50 2.48
Menomonee Falls 2.56 2.58
Mequon 2.48 2.38
Milwaukee 2.74 2.71
River Hills 2.39 2.39
Shorewood 2.20 2.22
St. Francis 2.65 2.65
Whitefish Bay 2.69 2.68

2-3



Section: 3
Title: Unit Process-Parameter Relationships
Reference: Secs. 17.103(25), 17.204, MMSD Rules

Unit Process-Parameter Relationships provide the basis for allocating the O & M costs of each
unit process to the cost allocation parameters of flow, BOD, TSS, and connections. The rela-
tionships presented in Table 3-1 are based on the User Charge Program alternative recommended
by Milwaukee County's Task Force on Metropolitan Sewerage Commission Development and its
User Charge subcommittee, which alternative was adopted by the Commissions on 13 July 1978.

In 1991, a User Charge Rate and Cost Allocation Study determined that the 1991 unit process-
parameter relationships were consistent with the 1978 study, except for five modifications which
were recommended and adopted. The study identified the Inline Storage System (ISS) as a unit
process qualifying as new and different from other existing unit processes. On November 30,
1992, the Commission adopted an alternative which allocated ISS and I/I treatment costs to the
parameters of flow and connections based on a percentage of each to their totals (cost net of
revenues).

In 2000, a User Charge Rate and Cost Allocation Study determined that the current unit process-
parameter relationships adequately and equitably reflect process changes and capital additions
since 1992 and these relationships are consistent with the 1992 study. However, 5 revisions to the
unit process cost allocation procedures were recommended and adopted.

Table 3-2 summarizes, under the appropriate charge parameters, the 2018 budget dollars that
Table 3-1 assigned to each unit process. Non-specific activities and miscellaneous services are
apportioned to the four parameters in the same proportion as specific parameter costs bear to the
total. Administrative support is distributed to the four parameters on the basis of labor costs, as
charged in the operating cost centers. Adjustments to account for the surplus or deficit on each
parameter in 2013 are also shown.

On September 11, 1996, the Public Service Commission ruled that capital cost recovery charges
related to watercourse improvement projects can only be collected from those extraterritorial
municipalities which are tributary to the watercourse being improved. In September 2017, the
.Commission amended Commission Policy 1-11.05, MMSD infrastructure Include Green
Infrastructure, (Resolution 17-086-09) to allow financial billing credits to non-member
communities for green infrastructure (GI) projects and expenditures. The following non-member
communities have elected to receive financial billing credits: Brookfield, Butler, Caledonia, Elm
Grove, Germantown, Menomonee Falls New Berlin and Thiensville.

3-1



Applying this determination to O&M costs, MMSD recovers operation and maintenance costs
related to watercourses only from the non-member communities which are tributary to the
watercourses being maintained and costs related to green infrastructure for non-member
communities who have not opted out of the MMSD green infrastructure program. Table 3-3
summarizes the 2018 budget dollars by watercourse and green infrastructure assigned to the flow
parameter. Table 3-4 adds the base flow rate from Table 3-2 and the watercourse and green
infrastructure rate from Table 3-3 to show a total flow rate. In addition, Table 3-4 reports the
volumetric charge and average household charge. Table 3-5 shows the current status of the user
charge stabilization fund. :

The Commission authorized the continuous use of this formula until further notice.



UNIT PROCESS OR ACTIVITY

JONES ISLAND TREATMENT PLANT

PRIMARY TREATMENT:
PUMPING, METERING AND SCREENING
PRIMARY SEDIMENTATION
DEBRIS/SCUM DISPOSAL
SECONDARY TREATMENT:
AERATION AND PROCESS AIR GENERATION
CLARIFICATION
SLUDGE RETURN
ADVANCE WASTEWATER TREATMENT:
DISINFECTION AND PHOSPHORUS REMOVAL
THICKENING
OTHER SLUDGE HANDLING PROCESSES
MILORGANITE PRODUCTS
INTERPLANT PIPELINE
PERMIT FEES
OFF-PLANT FACILITIES AND PROGRAMS
OTHER
NON-SPECIFIC ALLOCATION

TOTAL

SOUTH SHORE TREATMENT PLANT

PRIMARY TREATMENT:
PRECHLORINATION
COARSE SCREENING AND GRIT REMOVAL
PRIMARY SEDIMENTATION AND METER VAULT
DEBRIS/SCUM REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL
SECONDARY TREATMENT:
AERATION AND PROCESS AIR GENERATION
CLARIFICATION
SLUDGE RETURN
LAB ANALYSIS
ADVANCE WASTEWATER TREATMENT:
DISINFECTION AND PHOSPHORUS REMOVAL
EFFLUENT PUMPING
SOLIDS PROCESSING:
FLOATATION THICKENING
OTHER SLUDGE HANDLING PROCESSES
PRIMARY SLUDGE SCREENING
AGRICULTURAL USE OF AGRI-LIFE & POLYMER
FILTER CAKE TO WEPCO
INTERPLANT PIPELINE
PERMIT FEES
OTHER
NON-SPECIFIC ALLOCATION

TOTAL

2018 BUDGETED UNIT PROCESS-PARAMETER RELATIONSHIPS
IN THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS

BUDGET

$2,824
$1,860
$548

$6,156
$1,244
$1,778

$3,147
$3,456
$21,209
$088
$540
$468

$o
$391
$0
$44,609

$269
$1,216
$866
$1,038

$4,143
$1,280
$631
$0

$1,675
$402

$408
$3,494
$0

$9

$0
$1,141
$418
$428
$0
$17,418

$932
$1,860
$0

$0
$1,244
$0

$3,147
$169
$1,039
$48
$25

$0

$0
$358

$8,822

$269
$0
$866
$0

$0
$1,280
$0
$0

$1,675
$402

$19
$161
$0

$0

$0
$52
$0
$408
$0
$5,132

BOD

$0
$0
$0

$6,156
$0
$1,778

$0
$878
$5,387
$251
$82

$0

$0

$13

50
$14,555

50
$0
$0
$0

$4,143
$0
$631
$0

$0
$0

$69
$504
$0

$2

$0
$194
$0

$9

$0
$5,642

Iss

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0

30
$2,409
$14,783
$689
$423
$0

$0

$18

$0
$18,322

$0

$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0

$320
$2,739
$0

$7

$0
$895
$0

$7

$0
$3,968

CONNECTIONS

$1,892
$0
$548

$o
$0
$0

$0
$0
0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$2
$0
$2,442

$0
$1,216
$0
$1,038

$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0
0
$0
$0
$0
$0
sa
50
$2,258

NON-

SPECIFIC

$0
S0
$0

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
0
$0
$0
$0
$0
50
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

S0
$0
$o
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
so
$0
$0

LW.P.P,

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
0
0

$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
s0
$0
$0
$0
$0

PERMIT
FEES

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0

0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$468
$0
$0
$0
$468

$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$418
$0
$0
$418

n
STORAGE
COSTS

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
30

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
S0
$0

$0
$0

30
$0
$0
S0
$0
$0
$0
50
$0
0

HOUSEHOLD
HAZARDOUS
WASTE

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0

$0
s0
so
$0
$0
0
$o
$0
$0
0

$0
$0
30
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
30
$0
$0
)
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

WATERCOURSE
MAINTENANCE
COSTS

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0

s0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$o
$0
$0
$0
$0

TABLE 3-1
Page 1 of 2

GREEN
INFRASTRUCTURE

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
0
50

$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
50
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
50
$0



MILORGANITE
REVENUE

MARKETING
TOTAL

OTHER ALLOCABLE COST CENTERS

INLINE STORAGE SYSTEM

HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE PROGRAM
ENGINEERING:

LOCAL SEWER INSPECT/APPROVAL & MONIT. MIS/MUN}. SEWE
OTHER

RESEARCH AND CENTRAL LAB:

ANALYSIS OF LW.P.P.

OTHER SERVICES

FIELD OPERATIONS:

SEWER CLEANING, INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE
PUMP STATION AND INTERCEPTOR FACILITY
MAINTENANCE-WATER COURSE AND VEHICLES
MAINTENANCE-BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS
CENTRAL CONTROL SYSTEM

OFF-PLANT FACILITIES AND PROGRAMS

OTHER SERVICES

INDUSTRIAL WASTE PRETREATMENT PROGRAM:
PRETREATMENT PROGRAM MANAGEMENT
SAMPLE COLLECTION AND ANALYSIS-LABOR
OFF-PLANT FACILITIES AND PROGAMS

OTHER SERVICES

TOTAL

SUBTOTAL

OTHER ALLOCABLE COSTS AND REVENUES

ALLOCATION OF NON-SPECIFIC COSTS
EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND
UNALLOCATED RESERVE
INDUSTRIAL WASTE PRETREATMENT PROGRAM
HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE PROGRAM
WATERCOURSE MAINTENANCE
GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE
OTHER REVENUE
2016 SURPLUS APPLIED
USER CHARGE RATE STABILIZATION FUND
IWPP RATE STABILIZATION FUND

TOTAL

2018 BILLABLE COSTS

2018 BUDGETED UNIT PROCESS-PARAMETER RELATIONSHIPS
IN THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS

BUDGET

($9,000)

$4.648
($4,352)

$2,658
$1,197

$121
$8,688

$91
$1,007

$3,893
$1,889
$2,367
$1,554
$949
$0
$4,181

$336
$454
$0
$2,948
$32,333

$90,008

$0
$175
$2,943
($924)
($1,197)
($685)
($945)
(82,253)
($7,466)
$2,465
$0
($7,887)

$82.121

$0
$0

$121
$8

$0
$0

$3,803
$1,889
$1,412
$1,554
$949
$0
$3,500

$0
$0
$0
$0
$13,326

$27,280

$4,592
$67
$1,112
$0

$0

$0

$0
($620)
($1,993)
$1,100
$0
$4,258

$31.538

BOD

($9,000)

$4,648
($4,352)

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$15,845

$2,667
$39
$645
$0
$0
$0
$0
(5361)
($2,166)
$265
$0
$1,089

$16.934

SS

$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
50
$0
$0
30

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$22,290

$3,752
$55
$908
$o0
$0
$0
$0
($507)
($3,189)
$1,100
$0
$2,119

$24,400

NON-

CONNECTIONS SPECIFIC

$4,700

($107)

($169)
$0
$0

$719

$5.419

$0
$0

$o
$7,522

$0
$1,007

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$1
$680

$2,948
$12,158

$12,158

($12,158)
0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

(812,158)

£0

LW.P.P,

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$91
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$336
3454
$0
$0
$881

$881

$0

$0

$0
($924)
$0

$0
$o
($17)
$60
$0
$0
($881)

i

PERMIT
EEES

$0
$0
$0

$0

$0
$0

30
S0

$0
$0
50
$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$886

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$2
$0
$0
$2

£886

n
STORAGE
COSTS

$0
$0
$0

$2,658
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
30
$2,668

$2,658

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$275
$0
$0
$275

$2.933

HOUSEHOLD WATERCOURSE
HAZARDOUS MAINTENANCE

WASTE

$0
$0
$0

$0
$1,197

' 80
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$0

$0
80
$0
$1,197

$1,197

$0
$0
$0
$0
($1,197)
$0
30
$0
$0
$0
$0
($1,197)

0

COSTS

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0
$955
$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0
$955

$955

$161
$2
$39
$0
$0
($685)
$0
($615)
$143
$0
$0
($955)

$0

TABLE 3-1
Page 2 of 2

GREEN
INFRASTRUCTURE

50
s0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$1,158

$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0
$1,158

$1,158

$195
$0
$47
$0

30
$0
($945)
($26)
($429)
$0

$0
($1,158)

$0



2018 BUDGETED UNIT PROCESS-PARAMETER RELATIONSHIPS TABLE 3-2

IN THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS Page 1 0f 2
n HOUSEHOLD WATERCOURSE
NON- PERMIT STORAGE HAZARDOUS MAINTENANCE GREEN
JONES ISLAND TREATMENT PLANT BUDGET  FLOW BOD ISS CONNECTIONS SPECIFIC LW.P.P.  FEES COoSsTS WASTE COSTS INFRASTRUCTURE
BUDGETED COSTS $44,609 $8,822 $14,555 $18,322 $2,442 $0 $0 $468 $0 $0 o $0
NON-SPECIFIC ALLOCATION $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 80 s0 $0
- $44,609 $8,822 $14,555 $18,322 $2,442 s0 $0 $468 $0 $0 $0 $0
SUBTOTAL
SOUTH SHORE TREATMENT PLANT
BUDGETED COSTS $17,418 $5,132  $5642  $3,968 $2,258 50 $0 $418 $0 0 $0 $0
NON-SPECIFIC ALLOCATION $0 $0 s0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
SUBTOTAL $17,418 $5132  $5642  $3,968 $2,258 30 30 $418 $0 $0 $0 $0
MILORGANITE
MILORGANITE REVENUE ($9,000) $0  ($9,000) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
MARKETING COST CENTER $4,648 $0  $4,648 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0
SUBTOTAL ($4,352) $0  ($4,352) $0 $0 30 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER ALLOCABLE COST CENTERS
INLINE STORAGE SYSTEM $2,658 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,658 $0 $0 $0
HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE PROGRAM $1,197 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,197 $0 $0
ENGINEERING $8,809 $129 $0 $0 $0  $7,522 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,158
RESEARCH AND CENTRAL LAB $1,008 $0 $0 $0 $0  $1,007 $91 30 $0 $0 $0 $0
INDUSTRIAL WASTE PRETREATMENT $3,738 $0 $0 $0 S0 $2948  $790 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
FIELD OPERATIONS $14,833  $13,197 $0 $0 $0 $681 $0 $0 0 $0 $955 $0
SUBTOTAL $32,333  $13,326 $0 $0 $0  $12,158  $881 $0 $2,658 $1,197 $955 $1,158
TOTAL $90,008  $27,280 $15845 $22,290 $4,700 $12,158  $881 $886 $2,658 $1,197 $955 $1,158
OTHER ALLOCABLE COSTS AND REVENUES
NON-SPECIFIC ALLOCATION $0 $4,502  $2,667  $3,752 $791  ($12,158) $0 $0 $0 $0 $161 $195
EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND $175 $67 $39 $55 $12 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2 $0
UNALLOCATED RESERVE $2,943 $1,112 $645 $908 $192 $0 S0 $0 $0 $0 $39 $47
LW.P.P, ($924) $0 s0 $0 $0 $0  (s929) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE PROGRAM ($1,197) $0 $0 $0 $0 50 $0 $0 $0 ($1,197) $0 $0
WATERCOURSE MAINTENANCE (3685) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($685) $0
GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE (3945) $0 30 $0 $0 s0 $0 %0 $0 $0 $0 ($945)
INTEREST AND OTHER REVENUE ($2,253) ($620)  ($361)  ($507) (s107) $0 (s17) $0 30 $0 ($615) ($26)
2016 SURPLUS APPLIED ($7.466)  ($1,993) ($2,166) ($3,189) ($169) $0 $60 $2 $275 $0 $143 ($429)
USER CHARGE RATE STABILIZATION FUND $2,465 $1,100 $265  $1,100 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
IWPP RATE STABILIZATION FUND $0 $0 $0 50 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 50
SUBTOTAL (57.887) 34258  $1,089  $2,119 $718  ($12,158)  ($881) $2 $275 (51,197) (3955) (31,158)
ESTIMATED 2018 BILLABLE COSTS $62,121  $31.538 §16.934 $24.400 $5.419 50 50 s088 $2.933 80 $0 $0

% ALLOCATION FOR 11 COSTS 82.34% 14.66%



2018 CONNECTIONS & PROJECTED WASTELOADS:

BILLABLE COSTS
IN ALLOCATION

PERMIT FEE SURCHARGE

UNITS OF SERVICE BY CLASS OF USER:

CLASS OF USER

RESIDENTIAL
NON-CERTIFIED COMMERCIAL
CERTIFIED COMMERCIAL
CERTIFIED INDUSTRIAL
TOTALS

ESTIMATED BILLABLE WASTELOADS PER DAY
ESTIMATED INFILTRATION/INFLOW PER DAY
TOTAL DAILY WASTELOADS

INFILTRATION/INFLOW COSTS (INCLUDES ISS)

PERMIT FEES SURCHARGE:
PERMIT FEES

TOTAL BUDGET W\O PERMIT FEES
SURCHARGE

2018 BUDGETED UNIT PROCESS-PARAMETER RELATIONSHIPS

TABLE 3-2
Page 2 of 2

385,400 TOTAL I/l COSTS

$6.127.262  $25.495.344

FLOW BOD TSS
M.G.D. LBS./DAY LBS./DAY CONNECTIONS
169.6 345,150 385,400 303,154
FLOW BOD TsS
CENTS/1000 GAL.  CENTS/LBS. CENTS/ABS. DOLLARS/CONN,
$0.50947 $0.13442 $0.17352 $17.76
$0.68031 $0.00000 $0.00000 $12.25
$1.18978 $0.13442 $0.17352 $30.01
$0.01297 $0.00147 $0.00189 $0.33
$1.20275 £0.13589 $0.17541 $30.34
ESTIMATED
BILLABLE FLOW  ESTIMATED  ESTIMATED ESTIMATED
(1000 GAL.)  CONNECTIONS BODLBS. ISS LBS.
16,069,080 265,131 41,538,571 49,589,182
10,405,167 37,355 26,901,520 32,108,266
1,683,287 1,986 3,612,036 4,322,184
3,824,481 682 45,099,565 19,339,780
31,982,015 205354  117.151.692 105,359,412
87,621,959 320,964 288,656
82,000,000 24,186 96,744
169,621,959 345,150
$15.248.437 $1.186.645
$888,000
$81,233,000

1.09%



ALLOCATION OF 2018 O&M WATERCOURSE COSTS AND GREEN INFRATRUTURE

WATERCOURSE
LINCOLN CREEK
MILWAUKEE RIVER
SOUTH BRANCH CREEK
HONEY CREEK
MENOMONEE RIVER
LITTLE MENOMONEE RIVER
UNDERWOOD CREEK
UNDERWOOD CREEK S.BRANCH
WHITNALL PARK CREEK
BEAVER CREEK
ROOT RIVER
ROOT RIVER EAST BRANCH
OAK CREEK
OAK CREEK N. BRANCH
WILSON PARK CREEK
KINNICKINNIC
LYONS CREEK
EDGERTON CHANNEL
INDIAN CREEK

TOTAL

GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE

ALLOCATION
PERCENTAGES

71%
0.1%
0.0%

55%

1.3%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
1.1%

0.4%

4.9%
83.0%
2.2%
1.2%

0.0%

2018
BUDGETED
cosTs
$80,565
$1,135
$0
$62,425
$149,820
s0
$14,755
$0
$0
$0
$12,485
$4,540
so
so
$55,615
$122,060
$24,970
$13,620
$0
$542.000

2016
(SURPLUS)
DEFICIT
$3,177
$0
so
$0,678
{$25,541)
($869)
($7,873)
($528)
s0
$B11
$4,384
($1,050)
$5,677
so
$116,632
$20,884
$8,821
$5,205
$4,198
$143.000
($429.000)

$83,762
$1,136
so
$71,103
$124,279
($668)
$6,882
($525)
s0
$811
$16,869
$3,480
$5.677
so
$172,247
$142,034
$33,891
$18,016
§4.198
$625,000
$945,000

2018 PROJECTED
BILLABLE FLOW(Q)
MMSD
(1000 GAL.)
$27,780,725
$27,780,725
$27,780,725
$27,780,725
$27,780,725
$27,780,725
$27,780,725
$27,780,725
$27,780,725
$27,780,725
$27,780,725
$27,760,725
$27,780,725
$27,780,726
$27,780,725
27,780,725
$27,780,725
$27,780,726

$27,780,725

$27,780,725

BUTLER
BROOKFIELD CALEDONIA
423,251 91,953
423,251
423,251

2018 PROJECTED BILLABLE FLOWS (Q) BY COMMUNITY

ELM GROVE

144,333

144,333

144,333

WATERCOURSE RATES BY COMMUNITY

MMSD
BROOKFIELD
BUTLER
CALEDONIA
ELM GROVE
GERMANTOWN
MENOMONEE FALLS
MEQUON
MUSKEGO
NEW BERLIN
THIENSVILLE

§0.02412
$0.00418
$0.00386
$0.00000
$0.00418
$0.00384
$0.00398
$0.00401
$0.00058
$0.00476
50.00004

MENOMONEE FALLS MUSKEGO
MEQUON
$554,190
902,641 584,190
554,190
489,533
554,190
489,533
554,190 489,533

NEW BERLIN

847,196

847,196

847,198

847,196

" 847,198

GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE RATES BY COMMUNITY

MMSD
BROOKFIELD
BUTLER
CALEDONIA
ELM GROVE
GERMANTOWN
MENOMONEE FALLS
MEQUON
MUSKEGO
NEW BERLIN
THIENSVILLE

$0.03278
$0.00000
$0.00000
$0.00000
$0.00000
$0.00000
$0.00000
$0.03278
$0.03278
$0.00000
$0.00000

THIENSVILLE

$86,171

BILLABLE FLOWS
FOR
WATERCOURSE
(1000 GAL)
27,780,725
28,421,088
27,780,725
27,780,725
31,396,313
28,986,939
29,195,508
29,195,505
29,117,454
28,334,915
29,117,454
27,780,725
27,780,725
27,780,725
27,780,725
27,780,725
27,780,725
27,780,725

27,780,725

28,824,448

TABLE 3-3
Page 1 012

WATERCOURSE
RATE
{PER 1000 GAL)
$0.00302
$0.00004
$0.00000
$0,00258
$0.00296
{$0.00002)
$0.00024
($0.00002)
$0.00000
$0.00003
$0.00068
$0.00013
$0.00020
$0.00000
$0.00620
$0,00515
$0.00122
50.00068

$0.00015

$0.03278



FLOW-CENTS/1000 GAL.

BASE FLOW RATE-PER TABLE 3-2
WATERCOURSE RATES

GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE RATES
2018 FLOW RATE BY COMMUNITY

VOLUMETRIC CHARGES:

(PER THOUSAND GALLONS)
FLOW
BOD
TSS
TOTAL

AVERAGE HOUSEHOLD CHARGE:

ANNUAL VOLUMETRIC CHARGE
CONNECTION CHARGE

2018 FLOW RATE AND VOLUMETRIC CHARGES BY COMMUNITY

MMSD

$1.20275
$0.02412
$0.03278
$1.25065

$1.259650
$0.351276
0.541315

$2.152241

$107.03
$30.34
$137.37

BROOKFIELD

$1.20275
$0.00418
0.00000

£1.20693

$1.206930
$0.351276
$0.541315
$2.009521

$101.61
30.34
$131.95

BUTLER ELM GROVE MENOMONEE FALLS MUSKEGO
CALEDONIA GERMANTOWN MEQUON
$1.20275 $1.20275 $1.20275 $1.20275 $1.20275 $1.20275 $1.20275
$0.00396 $0.00000 $0.00418 $0.00394 $0.00396 $0.00401 $0.00058
$0.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000 $0.03278 $0.03278
$1.20671 $1.20273 £1.20603  §$1.20660  $£120671 $1,23954 $1.23611
$1.206710 $1.202750 $1.206930  $1.206690  $1.206710  $1.239540  $1.236110
$0.351276 $0.351276 $0.351276  $0.351276  $0.351276  $0.351276  $0.351276
0.541315 0.541315 $0.541315  $0.541315  $0.541315  $0.541315 ~ $0.541315
$2.099301 §2.009341 §2.000521  $2.099281  $2.000301  $2.132131  $2.1268701
$82.08 $78.35 $95.64 $97.62 $102.80 $96.31 $108.68
30.34 30.34 30.34 $30.34 $30.34 $30.34 30.34

$11242  $10060 §$12598  §$127.96  $13334  $12665  $139.02

NEW BERLIN

$1.20275
$0.00476
$0.00000
$1.20761

$1.207510
$0.351276
$0.541315
§2.100101

$103.64
$30.34
$133.98

Table3-4
Page 2 0f 2

THIENSVILLE

$1.20275
$0.00004
$0.00000
$1.20279

$1.202790
$0.351276
$0.541315
$2.008381

$95.45
$30.34
$125.79



User Charge Stabilization Fund

Table 3-5

Flow BOD TSS Connections | Total by Year
Fund Balance at
December 31, 2016 4,080,730 | $ 108,856 | $2,580,279|$ 877,088 |$ 7,646,953
Additions/(Withdrawals)
net of interest earned in
the year 2017 1,250,000 1$ 300,000 [ $ 1,750,000 | $ 865,0001$ 4,165,000
Fund Balance at
December 31, 2017 5,330,730 | $ 408,856 | $4,330,279 | $ 1,742,088 $11,811,953
Additions/(Withdrawals)
in the year 2018 1,100,000}$ 265,000 [$ 1,100,000 | $ -0- $ 2,465,000
Fund Balance at
December 31, 2018 6,430,730 | $ 673,856 | $ 5,430,279 | $ 1,742,088]$ 14,276,953




TABLE 5-1
SCHEDULES FOR TRANSMISSION OF USER DATA AND USER CHARGES

Class or User Data
Municipality District to MMSD Period Covered
Bayside All 6 Apr. (Jan-Feb-Mar)
3 July (Apr-May-June)
3 Oct. (July-Aug-Sept)
8 Jan. (Oct-Nov-Dec)
Brookfield All 7 Mar. (Jan-Feb-Mar)
8 June (Apr-May-June)
12 Sept. (July-Aug-Sept)
7 Dec. (Oct-Nov-Dec)
Brown Deer All 21 Feb. (Dec-Jan-Feb)
18 May (Mar-Apr-May)
22 Aug. (June-July-Aug)
28 Nov. (Sept-Oct-Nov)
Butler All 2 Mar. (Dec)(Jan-Feb)
1 June (Mar-Apr-May)
6 Sept. (June-July-Aug)
3 Dec. (Sept-Oct-Nov)
Caledonia All 5 Jan. (Oct-Nov-Dec)
6 Apr. (Jan-Feb-Mar)
6 July (Apr-May-June)
10 Oct. (July-Aug-Sept)
Crystal Ridge All 2 Feb. (Oct-Nov-Dec)
4 May (Jan-Feb-Mar)
8 Aug. (Apr-May-June)
7 Nov. (July-Aug-Sept)
Cudahy Industries 30 Jan. (December)
27 Feb. (January)
’ 28 Mar. (February)
27 Apr. (March)
31 May (April)
28 June (May)
31 July (June)
30 Aug. (July)
28 Sept. (August)
30 Oct. (September)
28 Nov. (October)
28 Dec. (November)

5-16



TABLE 5-1 (cont)
SCHEDULES FOR TRANSMISSION OF USER DATA AND USER CHARGES

Class or User Data
Municipality District to MMSD Period Covered
Cudahy #1 27 Feb. (Oct-Nov-Dec) (Jan)
28 June (Feb thru May)
30 Oct. (June thru Sept)
Cudahy #2 28 Mar. (Nov-Dec) (Jan-Feb)
28 June (Mar thru June)
28 Nov. (July thru Oct)
Cudahy #3 27 Apr. (Dec thru Mar)
30 Aug. (Apr thru July)
28 Dec. (Aug thru Nov)
Cudahy #4 30 Jan. (Sept thru Dec)
31 May (Jan thru Apr)
28 Sept. (May thru Aug)
Cudahy #5 28 Mar. (Nov-Dec) (Jan)
28 June (Feb-Mar-Apr)
28 Sept. (May-June-July)
28 Dec. (Aug-Sept-Oct)
Elm Grove All 28 Dec. (Oct-Nov-Dec)
28 Mar. (Jan-Feb-Mar)
03 July (Apr-May-June)
26 Sept. (July-Aug-Sept)
Fox Point All 16 Feb. (Nov-Dec) (Jan)
4 May (Feb-Mar-Apr)
8 Aug. (May-June-July)
7 Nov. (Aug-Sept-Oct)
Franklin All 5 Jan. (Oct-Nov-Dec)
6 Apr. (Jan-Feb-Mar)
6 July (Apr-May-June)
5 Oct. (July-Aug-Sept)
Germantown All 19 Jan. (Oct-Nov-Dec)
11 Apr. (Jan-Feb-Mar)
11 July (Apr-May-June)
12 Oct. (July-Aug-Sept)

5-17



TABLE 5-1 (cont)
SCHEDULES FOR TRANSMISSION OF USER DATA AND USER CHARGES

Class or User Data
Municipality District to MMSD Period Covered
Glendale #1 20 Feb. (Dec) (Jan-Feb)
22 May (Mar-Apr-May)
21 Aug. (June-July-Aug)
20 Nov. (Sept-Oct-Nov)
Glendale #2 20 Mar. (Jan-Feb-Mar)
22 June (Apr-May-June)
21 Sept. (July-Aug-Sept)
19 Dec. (Oct-Nov-Dec)
Glendale #3 23 Jan. (Nov-Dec) (Jan)
24 Apr. (Feb-Mar-Apr)
24 July (May-June-July)
23 Oct. (Aug-Sept-Oct)
Greendale #22 31 Jan, (Oct-Nov-Dec)
30 Apr. (Jan-Feb-Mar)
31 July (Apr-May-June)
31 Oct. (July-Aug-Sept)
Greenfield All 18 Jan. (Oct-Nov-Dec)
19 Apr. (Jan-Feb-Mar)
18 July (Apr-May-June)
11 Oct. (July-Aug-Sept)
Hales Corners All 14 Mar. (Jan-Feb-Mar)
15 June (Apr-May-June)
14 Sept. (July-Aug-Sept)
14 Dec. (Oct-Nov-Dec)
Menomonee Falls "A" 5 Jan. (Oct-Nov-Dec)
6 Apr. (Jan-Feb-Mar)
6 July (Apr-May-June)
5 Oct. (July-Aug-Sept)
* Menomonee Falls "B" 7 Feb. (Nov-Dec) (Jan)
4 May (Feb-Mar-Apr)
3 Aug. (May-June-July)
20 Nov. (Aug-Sept-Oct)

5-18



TABLE 5-1 (cont)
SCHEDULES FOR TRANSMISSION OF USER DATA AND USER CHARGES

Class or User Data
Municipality District to MMSD Period Covered
Menomonee Falls "C" 8 Mar. (Dec)(Jan-Feb)
6 June (Mar-Apr-May)
7 Sept. (June-July-Aug)
7 Dec. (Sept-Oct-Nov)
Mequon All 23 Jan. (Oct-Nov-Dec)
20 Apr. (Jan-Feb-Mar)
20 July (Apr-May-June)
19 Oct. (July-Aug-Sept)
Milwaukee #1 17 Jan. (Oct-Nov-Dec)
(Residential 13 Apr. (Jan-Feb-Mar)
Non-Certified) 13 July (Apr-May-June)
12 Oct. (July-Aug-Sept)
Milwaukee #2 9 Feb. (Nov-Dec) (Jan)
16 May (Feb-Mar-Apr)
15 Aug. (May-June-July)
14 Nov. (Aug-Sept-Oct)
Milwaukee #3 14 Mar. (Dec) (Jan-Feb)
15 June (Mar-Apr-May)
14 Sept. (June-July-Aug)
14 Dec. (Sept-Oct-Nov)
Milwaukee #1
(Certified 11-12 26 Feb. (Jan-Feb-Mar)
Users) 13-14 5 Mar. (Jan-Feb-Mar)
15-16 12 Mar. (Jan-Feb-Mar)
17-19 19 Mar. (Jan-Feb-Mar)
99 23 Mar. (March)
11-12 30 May (Apr-May-June)
13-14 4 June (Apr-May-June)
15-16 11 June (Apr-May-June)
17-19 18 June (Apr-May-June)
99 25 June (June)
11-12 27 Aug. (July-Aug-Sept)
13-14 4 Sept. (July-Aug-Sept)
15-16 10 Sept. (July-Aug-Sept)
17-19 17 Sept. (July-Aug-Sept)
99 24 Sept. (September)

5-19



TABLE 5-1 (cont)
SCHEDULES FOR TRANSMISSION OF USER DATA AND USER CHARGES

Class or User Data

Municipality District to MMSD Period Covered
11-12 26 Nov. (Oct-Nov-Dec)
13-14 3 Dec. (Oct-Nov-Dec)
15-16 10 Dec. (Oct-Nov-Dec)
17-19 17 Dec. (Oct-Nov-Dec)
99 20 Dec. (December)

Milwaukee #2

(Certified 21-22 3 Jan. (Nov-Dec-Jan)

Users) 23-24 8 Jan. (Nov-Dec-Jan)
25-26 16 Jan. (Nov-Dec-Jan)
27-29 22 Jan. (Nov-Dec-Jan)
99 24 Jan. (January)
21-22 2 Apr. (Feb-Mar-Apr)
23-24 9 Apr. (Feb-Mar-Apr)
25-26 16 Apr. (Feb-Mar-Apr)
27-29 23 Apr. (Feb-Mar-Apr)
99 23 Apr. (April)
21-22 2 July (May-June-July)
23-24 9 July (May-June-July)
25-26 16 July (May-June-July)
27-29 23 July (May-June-July)
99 25 July (July)
21-22 1 Oct. (Aug-Sept-Oct)
23-24 8 Oct. (Aug-Sept-Oct)
25-26 15 Oct. (Aug-Sept-Oct)
27-29 22 Oct. (Aug-Sept-Oct)
99 24 Oct. (October)

Milwaukee #3

(Certified 31-32 29 Jan. (Dec-Jan-Feb)

Users) 33-34 5 Feb. (Dec-Jan-Feb)

35-36 12 Feb. (Dec-Jan-Feb)
37-39 19 Feb. (Dec-Jan-Feb)
99 21 Feb. - (February)
31-32 30 Apr. (Mar-Apr-May)
33-34 7 May (Mar-Apr-May)
35-36 14 May (Mar-Apr-May)
37-39 21 May (Mar-Apr-May)
99 24 May (May)

5-20



SCHEDULES FOR TRANSMISSION OF USER DATA AND USER CHARGES

Municipality

Milwaukee Water Department

Muskego

Muskego

New Berlin

Oak Creek

»

Qak Creek

Oak Creek

TABLE 5-1 (cont)

Class or
District

31-32
33-34
35-36
37-39
99

31-32
33-34
35-36
37-39
99

2 Plants

All

LF

All

#1

#2

#3

5-21

User Data

_toMMSD

30 July
8 Aug.
13 Aug.
20 Aug.
24 Aug.

29 Oct.

5 Nov.
12 Nov.
19 Nov.
26 Nov.

16 Jan.
17 Apr.
17 July
16 Oct.

5 Jan.
6 Apr.
6 July
5 Oct.

16 Feb.
11 May
10 Aug.
14 Nov.

14 Mar.
13 June
12 Sept.
11 Dec.

16 Feb.
11 May
10 Aug.

7 Nov.

9 Mar.
8 June
7 Sept.
7 Dec.

6 Apr.
6 July
12 Oct.
23 Jan.

Period Covered

(June-July-Aug)
(June-July-Aug)
(June-July-Aug)
(June-July-Aug)
(August)

(Sept-Oct-Nov)
(Sept-Oct-Nov)
(Sept-Oct-Nov)
(Sept-Oct-Nov)
(November)

(Oct-Nov-Dec)
(Jan-Feb-Mar)
(Apr-May-June)
(July-Aug-Sept)

(Oct-Nov-Dec)
(Jan-Feb-Mar)
(Apr-May-June)
(July-Aug-Sept)

(Oct-Nov-Dec)
(Jan-Feb-Mar)
(Apr-May-June)
(July-Aug-Sept)

(Jan-Feb-Mar)
(Apr-May-June)
(July-Aug-Sept)
(Oct-Nov-Dec)

(Nov-Dec-Jan)
(Feb-Mar-Apr)
(May-June-July)
(Aug-Sept-Oct)

(Dec-Jan-Feb)

(Mar-Apr-May)
(June-July-Aug)
(Sept-Oct-Nov)

(Jan-Feb-Mar)
(Apr-May-June)
(July-Aug-Sept)
(Oct-Nov-Dec)



TABLE 5-1 (cont)

SCHEDULES FOR TRANSMISSION OF USER DATA AND USER CHARGES

Class or
Municipality District
Oak Creek-Ash LF
Oak Creek Industries
River Hills All
Shorewood All
St. Francis All
Thiensville All

5-22

User Data

to MMSD

30 Jan.
27 Apr.
27 July
31 Oct.

19 Jan.
20 Feb.
20 Mar.
20 Apr.
18 May
20 June
20 July
20 Aug.
20 Sept.
19 Oct.
20 Nov.
20 Dec.

13 Apr.
15 Aug.
19 Dec.

7 Mar.
6 June
6 Sept.
5 Dec.

7 Mar.
6 June
6 Sept.
5 Dec.

23 Jan.
20 Apr.
20 July
19 Oct.

Period Covered

(Oct-Nov-Dec)
(Jan-Feb-Mar)
(Apr-May-June)
(July-Aug-Sept)

(Dec-Jan)
(Jan-Feb)
(Feb-Mar)
(Mar-Apr)
(Apr-May)
(May-June)
(June-July)
(July-Aug)
(Aug-Sept)
(Sept-Oct)
(Oct-Nov)
(Nov-Dec)

(Jan thru Apr)
(May thru Aug)
(Sept thru Dec)

(Dec) (Jan-Feb)
(Mar-Apr-May)
(June-July-Aug)
(Sept-Oct-Nov)

(Dec) (Jan-Feb)
(Mar-Apr-May)
(June-July-Aug)
(Sept-Oct-Nov)

(Oct-Nov-Dec)
(Jan-Feb-Mar)
(Apr-May*June)
(July-Aug-Sept)



TABLE 5-1 (cont)
SCHEDULES FOR TRANSMISSION OF USER DATA AND USER CHARGES

Class or User Data

Municipality District to MMSD Period Covered
Wauwatosa #1 16 Feb. (Nov-Dec) (Jan)

16 May (Feb-Mar-Apr)

15 Aug. (May-June-July)

28 Nov. (Aug-Sept-Oct)
Wauwatosa #2 14 Mar. (Dec) (Jan-Feb)

15 June (Mar-Apr-May)

14 Sept. (June-July-Aug)

19 Dec. (Sept-Oct-Nov)
Wauwatosa #3 19 Jan. (Oct-Nov-Dec)

18 Apr. (Jan-Feb-Mar)

18 July (Apr-May-June)

17 Oct. (July-Aug-Sept)
Wauwatosa #4 23 Jan. (December)

16 Feb. (January)

14 Mar. (February)

18 Apr. (March)

16 May (April)

15 June (May)

18 July (June)

15 Aug. (July)

14 Sept. (August)

17 Oct. (September)

28 Nov. (October)

19 Dec. (November)
West Allis #1 23 Feb. (Nov-Dec) (Jan)

31 May (Feb-Mar-Apr)

29 Aug. (May-June-July)

28 Nov. (Aug-Sept-Oct)
West Allis #2 28 Mar. (Dec) (Jan-Feb)

27 June (Mar-Apr-May)

26 Sept. (June-July-Aug)

28 Dec. (Sept-Oct-Nov)
West Allis #3 26 Jan. (Oct-Nov-Dec)

27 Apr. (Jan-Feb-Mar)

27 July (Apr-May-June)

26 Oct. (July-Aug-Sept)

5-23



TABLE 5-1 (cont)
SCHEDULES FOR TRANSMISSION OF USER DATA AND USER CHARGES

Class or User Data

Municipality District to MMSD Period Covered
West Milwaukee All 16 Feb. (Nov-Dec) (Jan)

04 May (Feb-Mar-Apr)

10 Aug. (May-June-July)

7 Nov. (Aug-Sept-Oct)

West Milwaukee Industries 26 Jan. (January)

23 Feb. (February)

27 Mar. (March)

25 Apr. (April)

24 May (May)

26 June (June)

26 July (July)

24 Aug. (August)

25 Sept. (September)

26 Oct. (October)

21 Nov. (November)

21 Dec. (December)
Whitefish Bay All 23 Jan. (Oct-Nov-Dec)

20 Apr. (Jan-Feb-Mar)

20 July (Apr-May-June)

19 Oct (July-Aug-Sept)

5-24



Section: 10
Title: Unit Costs of Treatment
Reference: Secs. 17.103(24) and 17.205, MMSD Rules

District unit costs of treatment for 2018 are:

Flow (Base Rate)

Flow (Watercourse &
Green Infrastructure Rate)
BOD

TSS

Connection Charge

$1.20275/1000 gal.

See Table 3-4.
$0.13589/pound
$0.17541/pound
$30.34/year

The derivation of these charges is described herein, as follows.

The net portion of the adopted 2018 Operation and Maintenance (O&M) budget billable via the
user charge program is $83,751,000. This total amount has been distributed to the cost allocation
parameters and is described in Section 3 of the Cost Recovery Procedures Manual under UNIT
PROCESS-PARAMETER RELATIONSHIPS.

That distribution yields the following breakdown between the parameters for 2018:

Flow $31,538,000
BOD 16,934,000 (Biochemical oxygen demand)
TSS 24,409,000 (Total suspended solids)
Connections 5,419,000
Permit Fees 888,000
I/I Storage Costs 2,933,000
Green Infrastructure 945,000
Watercourse Costs 685,000
$83,751,000

This total treatment cost is to be recovered through a formula that recognizes that billable
wasteloads of Flow, BOD, and TSS are directly traceable to users on a unit basis, and the
remaining treatment costs, excluding permit fees and UI storage costs, are best shared equally by
the total number of connections to the system.

The first portion consists of assorted wastewater discharges (intentional discharges of domestic
wastes, process wastes or cooling waters) comprising 52 percent of the total annual flow, 93 percent
of the BOD load, and 75 percent of the TSS observed at the plants. The balance consists of the
infiltration/inflow components which are extremely variable in volume and of comparatively
indeterminate origin.

10-1



Dividing the various treatment costs by the corresponding total expected wasteloads yields unit costs
of treatment for the coming year. Total wasteloads have been forecasted by analyzing previous years'
billed quantities and projecting observed trends into 2018. Quantities assignable to wastewater
discharge and infiltration/inflow are based on characterization of system users by the District, as
presented in Technical Memoranda 4A through 4E for the sample year 1975, supplemented by more
recent data collected by the District.

Residential Flows in 2018 is expected to be lower than that forecasted a year ago for 2017.
Commercial and Industrial flow is expected to increase. Sources of wastewater flow are anticipated to
be as follows:

Residential - 44.0 MGD
Commercial - 28.5 MGD (non-certified)
4.6 MGD (614 certified businesses)
Industrial - 10.5 MGD (385 process waste dischargers)
87.6 MGD

I/T flow is quite unpredictable. The projected amount for 2018 is 82 MGD. This is based on
a five-year average. The projected sum of the wastewater and I/I flow is 169.6 MGD for 2018.
Connections are expected to be 305,154,

BOD loading in the wastewater projection for 2018 is increased 4.3% and the TSS loading is
decreased 0.7% from the previous year's projection. In making these projections, actual loadings for
the first six months of 2018 were used along with historical trends, and a review of 100 of the largest
users of the system.

The BOD and TSS assigned to infiltration/inflow is calculated from a sampling program which
yielded strengths of 50 mg/l (417#/MGD) and 200 mg/l (1668#/MGD), respectively, for the inflow
portion, estimated at 58 MGD; and zero strength for the 24 MGD infiltration portion.

The resultant estimated wasteloadings for 2018 are:

Flow BOD TSS

MGD) (lbs/day) (Ibs/day)
Wastewater 87.6 320,964 288,656
1 82.0 24.186 96,744
Total 169.6 345,150 385,400

10-2



Unit Costs of Treatment Excluding Permit Fees and Watercourse:

Flow = $31,538,000 = $0.50947/1,000 gal.
169.6 MGD/1,000 x 365

BOD = $16,934.000 = $0.13442/pound
345,150 1bs. x 365
TSS = $24.,409.000 = $0.17352/pound

385,400 Ibs. x 365

Infiltration/Inflow Costs:

The total cost is calculated herein, and allocated to the parameters of Flow (85.34%) and connections
(14.66%) based on a percentage of each to their totals:

/I Flow = 82.0MGD _ x $0.50947 x 365 days = $15,248,437
1,000

VIBOD = 24,186 x $0.13442 x 365 days = 1,186,645

VITSS= 96,744 x $0.17352 x 365 days = 6,127,262

I/T Storage Costs 2,933,000

Total /I Costs $ 25,495,344

Flow portion of I/I:

$_25,495,344 x 85.34% = $0.68031/1,000 gal.
87,621,959/1,000 x 365

District Unit Costs of Treatment Including Surcharge:

Flo\w = Treatment Unit Costs $ 0.50947
I/T Unit Costs 0.68031
$1.18978
Base Rate =  With 1.09% Surcharge $ 1.20275/1,000 gal.
BOD = Treatment Unit Costs $0.13442
With 1.09% Surcharge $ 0.13589/pound
TSS = Treatment Unit Costs $0.17352
With 1.09% Surcharge $ 0.17541/pound

10-3



Volumetric Charges:

From these three rates, the volumetric charge can be computed for a given wastewater contribution.
For the most common concentration, domestic strength, they can be conveniently combined into a
single rate, using the equivalencies of 310 mg/l BOD = 2.585 1b/1000 gal., and 370 mg/l TSS = 3.086
1b./1000 gal., as follows:

Flow See Table 3-4.
BOD =2.585 1b./1000 gal. x .13589¢/1b. $.351276/1,000 gal.
TSS =3.0861b./1000 gal. x .17541c/lb. $.541315/1,000 gal.
Volumetric charge (domestic strength) See Table 3-4.

Connection Charge:

The cost of removing debris and other treatment costs that have not been assigned to Flow, BOD and
TSS in addition to the I/I costs allocated to connection and the permit fee surcharge:

Debris and other treatment costs = $.5.419,000 = $17.76/year
305,154
I/T costs allocable to connection = $25,495,344 x 14.66% = §$12.25/year
305,154
Permit fee surcharge @ 1.09% = $_0.33/year
$30.34/year

District Average Household Charge:

See Table 3-4.

10-4



Recapitulation:

Recoverable Via

Recoverable Via

Volumetric Chg. Connection Chg. Total
Flow costs $ 29,302,579 $ 2,235,421 $ 31,538,000
BOD costs 16,760,038 173,962 16,934,000
TSS costs 23,510,743 898,257 24,409,000
Debris &
other costs 0 5,419,000 5,419,000
Watercourse costs 685,000 0 685,000
I/T storage costs 2,501,968 431,032 2,933.000
Green Infrastructure 945,000 0 945,000
Permit Fees 787,299 100,701 888.000
Budget $_ 74,492,627 $__ 9258373 $_ 83,751,000

Since actual billings during the course of the year are dependent upon estimated wasteloads,
reported water consumption (commercial and industrial) and number of units (residential), the
revenue generated will not match the aforementioned budget figure. The surplus or deficit, as
determined at the end of the yearly billing period, will enter into the computation of the future
year's unit costs of treatment.

10-5



Section: 11
Title: Pretreatment Program and Monitoring Charges
Authority: Sections 17.103(15), 17.206, 17.207, and 17.211, MMSD Rules

In October, 1980, the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources modified the District's WPDES
discharge permits to include a schedule of compliance which required the development of an
industrial waste pretreatment program. One requirement of this schedule was the development of
a funding mechanism for financing the implementation and administration of this program. State
and Federal regulations specified that the costs associated with the administration of such a
program must be recovered solely from the industrial class. Since the user charge system adopted
by the District on January 1, 1979, would recover these costs from all classes of users, it became
necessary to establish a separate funding mechanism.

The funding method adopted by the District to accomplish this task also recovers the costs
associated with the user charge verification sampling program (see Section 8) since both programs

overlap in technical support and monitoring activities.

Technical Support Charge Derivation

The portion of the total program cost associated with technical support activities is recovered
through a graduated schedule of flat fees which recognizes that users who are sampled more and
have an Industrial Discharge Permit frequently are responsible for a greater percentage of these
costs. This fee schedule is based on the class system for users established within the user charge
wastestrength verification sampling program. This system classifies a user based upon the amount
of sewer user charge paid (see Section 8), since this amount is a reflection of the wasteload
contributed to the District by that user. The frequency at which the District samples a user is
based upon this classification.

Based upon these sampling frequencies, a rating factor is assigned to each class which recognizes
the anticipated level of effort to be expended by the District. Utilizing these rating factors and the
number of users within each class, a total weight is assigned to each class. Summing the
individual total weights and dividing the estimated technical costs by this total weight determines
the dollar amount assigned to the base rating factor (1 X). It should be noted that Class 6
represents those users who are not sampled on a regular basis and do not have an Industrial
Discharge permit but are still responsible for a portion of the overall program costs. The 2018
annual fees are as follows:



Annual Fee

Class Rating Factor Number of Facilities Permit  No Permit
1 105X 1 $20,356 $ 13,571
2 70X 10 $ 13,571 $ 9,047
3 15X 8 $2,908 $ 1,939
4 10X 53 $ 1,939 $ 1,292
5 5X 87 $ 969 $ 646
6 1X 204 $ 129

363

These annual fees are included on the sewer user charge billings for all users in the following
classes:

30 Non-Certified Industrial

31 Discharge Certified Industrial

32 Wastestrength Certified Commercial

33 Wastestrength Certified Industrial

Notice of Intent to Discharge Fee

If the discharge from a site is contaminated groundwater, groundwater removed from an excavation
during construction, or any other irregular non-domestic wastewater, then the District must receive
a fee of $250 when a Notice of Intent to Discharge is submitted, except as provided below. The fee
is required once per calendar year per site.

If the site is already paying a technical support charge or will be paying a technical support charge
in response to a new long-term discharge, then payment of the Notice of Intent fee is not required.

Monitoring Charge Derivation

Under the industrial waste program, samples are collected by District personnel for two basic
purposes: 1) monitoring compliance with applicable effluent limitations; and 2) assuring that users
are paying user charges which are representative of their true wastewater characteristics. The
frequency at which the District conducts user charge sampling is identified within Section 8. The
frequency at which the District conducts compliance sampling is prescribed by the approved
pretreatment program or by a determination of the potential impact a given users discharges can
have 6n District operations. In situations where compliance monitoring reveals that compliance
with applicable effluent limitations is not being achieved, the District may increase its frequency of
sampling until it is assured that consistent compliance is being achieved. The costs associated with
the collection and analysis of these samples are recovered from the individual users.

The sample collection monitoring fee schedule is established annually and is based upon a series of
rating factors which correspond to the level of effort involved in the collection of various types of
samples. The District collects three different types of samples: 1) a grab sample, 2) time composite
sample and 3) a flow proportioned composite sample.

11-2



Each of these three sample types is assigned a rating factor which represents the level of effort
necessary to collect the particular type of sample. These rating factors are then multiplied by the
estimated number of samples to be collected in 2018 to arrive at a total sampling weight.

The 2018 estimated monitoring costs (excluding lab analysis costs) are then divided by the total
sampling weight to determine the sample collection fee for a grab sample. Multiplying this grab
sample fee by the rating factors for the time composite and flow proportioned composite sample
types establishes the corresponding sample collection fees for these sample types. Following are
the 2018 sample collection fees.

Estimated
Rating No. of
Sample Type Factor Samples Weight Fee

Grab 1.5 683 1406 $245

Time Composite 3.0 196 657 $491

Flow Composite 4.5 287 1589 $736
Continuous pH Monitoring $265 per event
Discrete pH Monitoring $20
Flow composite, facility equipment $245

When sampling is done on a daily basis and used for enforcement or to ensure compliance with state
federal or local limits, then the costs will be as follows:

Sample Type Fee
Flow Composite, starting with the second day $491.00

This cost will be used only after the initial set-up costs have been billed.

The schedule of laboratory analysis monitoring fees is established annually and consists of a charge per
pollutant based upon the labor, chemicals and equipment needed to perform a given pollutant analysis.
For 2018, the fee schedule is as follows:

Semivolatile Organics by GCMS 140.00
Semivolatile Organics by GCMS (Base/Neutrals Only) 125.00
BOD, 5-day Total - 17.00
Cyanide, (Amenable) 42.00
Cyanide, (Total) _ 27.00

11-3



Fluoride 10.00
Mercury, (T) 18.00

Metals Analysis by ICP $10.00/element
Elements analyzed include; Arsenic; Barium; Cadmium; Chromium; Cobalt; Copper;

Iron; Lead; Manganese; Molybdenum; Nickel; Selenium; Silver; Tin; Titanium; Zinc.
Other elements analyzed on request.

Oil and Grease, (HEM) 53.00
Total Hydrocarbons, (SGT-HEM) 53.00
Paper Fiber Count 64.00
Phenols, (T) 19.00
Phosphorus, (T) 16.00
PCBs as Aroclor 58.00
Sulfide, (T) 33.00
Suspended Solids, (T) 11.00
Volatile Organics by GCMS 58.00

Should it become necessary for the District to analyze for pollutants not listed above,
representative charges for those pollutants will be developed by Laboratory Services.

The District at the conclusion of each sampling period bills the monitoring fees for both sample
collection and laboratory analysis directly to the affected user.

In some cases, District monitoring will be only a visual inspection. The purpose of the inspection
is to determine whether an obstruction is present. The District will charge for this inspection when
(1) a particular user has caused the obstruction and (2) the District has previously notified the user
of the obstruction and requested remedial action. The District will continue charging the user for
inspections until the cause or source of the obstruction is eliminated. If an obstruction is large
enough to cause an overflow, basement flooding, or other significant adverse effects, then the
District may charge for the inspection without prior notice. The effort required for an inspection is
similar to the effort required for a grab sample. Therefore, the inspection fee is equal to the grab
sample fee, as established above.



Section: 12
Title: Late Payment Penalty
Reference: Sec. 17.105(3), MMSD Rules

The District may charge a late payment penalty when the payment of a bill is late or when an
undercharge was caused by an error or omission of a municipality, user or other person receiving
service from the District.

The late payment penalty for 2018 will be 12% of the amount due to the District compounded
annually.

In cases of undercharges caused by fraud or other misrepresentation, the District will not waive the
late payment penalty.

12-1



Section: 13
Title: Charges for Special Wastes
Reference: Secs. 17.210 and 17.211, MMSD Rules

Septic and Holding Tank Waste

At the South Shore Water Reclamation Facility, the District accepts septic and holding tank waste.
This waste must comply with the requirements of MMSD Rules, Chapter 11, particularly secs.
11.701 to 11.708. This waste is limited to domestic wastewater. Any waste with a BOD that
exceeds 2,500 mg/l or a TSS that exceeds 2,500 mg/l must be classified as septic tank waste.

Any vehicle that delivers septic or holding tank waste must have a license from the District. The
hauler must renew the license annually, on a calendar year basis.

The following table shows the charges for holding tank waste, septic tank waste, and the vehicle
license fee.

Item Rate

Holding Tank Waste $25.19/thousand gallons
Septic Tank Waste $33.15/thousand gallons
Vehicle License Fee $250/vehicle per year

The charges for septic and holding tank waste include an operating component and a capital
component. An owner of a septic or holding tank who is also subject to property taxation by the
District may, on an annual basis, obtain a refund of the capital component. To obtain this refund,
the owner must submit to the District copies of waste hauling bills for the year, a copy of the
property tax bill, and the owner’s social security number or tax identification number.

Groundwater Discharges

Generally, to conserve capacity within the sewerage system, the discharge of groundwater is
prohibited. However, the District may occasionally approve discharges of groundwater when
necessary for groundwater or soil remedial action, construction, or other special circumstances.
The rate for discharging groundwater is $2.50 per thousand gallons.

Beneficial High Strength Waste

At the South Shore Water Reclamation Facility, the District accepts high strength waste for
anaerobic co-digestion. For this purpose, the preferred type of waste has a BOD concentration
greater than 50,000 mg/l and a TSS concentration less than 1,000 mg/l. However, the District may
accept wastes with a lower BOD or higher TSS, if these wastes will promote the best interests of
the District. The District feeds this waste directly into digesters.

13-1



Generally, the rate for waste received for anaerobic co-digestion is $0.035 per gallon. Based upon
a consideration of the volume to be received, BOD or TSS concentrations other than the typical
concentrations, or other factors, the District may establish an alternative rate by contract.

Miscellaneous Special Wastes

When appropriate to serve the best interests of the District, the District may accept miscellaneous
special wastes for disposal. For each waste, the District will establish charges for these wastes
according to MMSD Rules, sec. 17.211. Considerations will include, but are not limited to:
treatment costs, monitoring costs, administration costs, risks to the sewerage system or the
environment, and the generator’s or hauler’s avoided costs.

13-2



Section: 14
Title: Household Hazardous Waste Program Costs

The District currently has contracts with 19 municipalities listed below who are participating in
the Household Hazardous Waste Program. The actual costs incurred in operating the Household
Hazardous Waste Program are to be billed to each community on the basis of residential units.

A residential unit is defined as an individual residence such as a house, condominium, an
apartment or mobile home (example: 4 unit apartment will be classified as 4 residential units).
Apartments or condominiums that are larger than 4 units will be classified as 4 residential units).
Participation municipalities shall report to the District the number of residential units within the
municipality by July 31 of each year.

The Household Hazardous Waste Program Charge for 2018 will be billed to each participating
community on or before March 1, 2019 and payable by April 1, 2019.

Municipalities participating in 2018:

Bayside Oak Creek
Brown Deer River Hills
Cudahy South Milwaukee
Fox Point St. Francis
Franklin Shorewood
Glendale Wauwatosa
Greendale West Allis
Greenfield West Milwaukee
Hales Corners Whitefish Bay
Milwaukee

14-1



Schedule A

UPDATE OF THE COST RECOVERY PROCEDURES MANUAL

2018 User Charge Rates Analysis vs. Approved 2017 Rates

Total User Charge Billings Proposed for 2018:  $83,750,613

Total User Charge Billings Proposed for 2017:  $75,112,768

Change from 2017: $8,637.845

Percentage Increase 11.5%

Flow BOD TSS Conn. MMSD

Cents/1000 | Cents/LBS. | Cents/LBS. Dollars Average

Household
Charge Est.

2018 $1.25965 | $0.13589 | $0.17541 $30.34 $137.37
2017 $1.12748 | $0.12730 | $0.16289 $23.98 $124.04
% Change] 11.8% 6.7% 7.7% 26.5% 10.7%
from 2017

KACRPM\COST RECOVERY MANUALS 2018\2017RATEANALYSI&STABILIZATION-COMMISSION0%change
090117 .xIsx8:02 AM10/25/2017



Update of Cost Recovery Procedures Manual Schedule B
Including 2018 User Charge Rate

ANNUAL SINGLE FAMILY HOUSEHOLD PEOPLE PER UNIT FOR
AVERAGE USER CHARGE USER CHARGE BILLING IN:
2017 2018 PERCENT CHANGE 2017 2018  PERCENT CHANGE
BAYSIDE $116.46 $129.20 10.94% 2.44 2.42 -0.82%
BROOKFIELD $118.63 $131.95 11.23% 2.53 2.55 0.79%
BROWN DEER $123.66 $136.55 10.42% 2.63 2.60 -1.14%
BUTLER $101.42 $112.42 10.85% 2.07 2.06 -0.48%
CALEDONIA $97.38 $108.69 11.61% 1.97 1.97 0.00%
CUDAHY $111.15 $124.29 11.82% 2.30 2.30 0.00%
ELM GROVE $114.14 $125.98 10.37% 2.41 2.40 -0.41%
FOX POINT $115.32 $129.20 12.04% 2.41 2.42 0.41%
FRANKLIN $130.86 $146.35 11.84% 2.82 2.84 0.71%
GERMANTOWN $117.13 $127.96 9.25% 2.49 2.45 -1.61%
GLENDALE $110.02 $122.25 11.12% 2.27 2.25 -0.88%
GREENDALE $122.90 $138.18 12.43% 2.61 2.64 1.15%
GREENFIELD $117.22 $130.01 10.91% 2.46 2.44 -0.81%
HALES CORNERS $118.73 $131.65 10.88% 2.50 2.48 -0.80%
MENOMONEE FALLS $119.75 $133.14 11.18% 2.56 2.58 0.78%
MEQUON $116.79 $126.65 8.44% 2.48 2.38 -4.03%
MILWAUKEE $127.83 $141.04 10.33% 2.74 2.71 -1.09%
MUSKEGO $124.62 $139.02 11.56% 2.70 2.69 -0.37%
NEW BERLIN $122.41 $133.98 9.45% 2.63 2.60 -1.14%
OAK CREEK $134.65 $150.03 11.42% 2.92 2.93 0.34%
RIVER HILLS $114.56 $127.97 11.71% 2.39 2.39 0.00%
SHOREWOQOD $107.36 $121.03 12.73% 2.20 2.22 0.91%
ST. FRANCIS $124.42 $138.59 11.39% 2.65 2.65 0.00%
THIENSVILLE $114.15 $125.79 10.20% 2.42 2.40 -0.83%
WAUWATOSA $112.67 $125.52 11.40% 2.34 2.33 -0.43%
WEST ALLIS $110.77 $121.84 9.99% 2.29 224 -2.18%
WEST MILWAUKEE $119.49 $132.46 10.85% 2.52 2.50 -0.79%
WHITEFISH BAY $125.93 $139.82 11.03% 2.69 2.68 -0.37%
DISTRICT AVERAGE $124.04 $137.37 10.74% 2.64 2.62 -0.76%
THE ANNUAL SINGLE FAMILY HOUSEHOLD AVERAGE USER CHARGE IS CALCULATED AS FOLLOWS: ANALYSIS OF CHANGE IN THE DISTRICT'S AVERAGE USER CHARGE:
3017 8 2017 2018 PERCENT CHANGE
DOMESTIC FLOW (EXCLUDING I/) GAL/DAY. 53 52 CHANGE IN VOLUMETRIC RATE $1.959230 $2.152241 9.9%
TIMES
OCCUPANCY FACTOR 264 2,62 CHANGE IN CONNECTION CHARGE $23.98 $30.34 26.5%
TIMES
NUMBER OF DAYS PER YEAR 365 365 CHANGE IN OCCUPANCY FACTOR 2.64 . 2.62 -0.8%
TIMES
VOLUMETRIC CHARGE PER 1,000 GAL. $1.959230 $2.152241 CHANGE IN DOMESTIC FLOW 53 52 -1.9%
ADD
ANNUAL CONNECTION CHARGE $23.98 $30.34 CHANGE IN AVERAGE CHARGE $124.04 $137.37 10.7%
TOTAL ANNUAL USER CHARGE $124,04 $137.37

K:\Housing&Comm&Ind Wasteloads\2018\2018AVGHHCOMMISSION.xIsx11:22 AM10/95/2017



Update of Cost Recovery Procedure Manual

Schedule C

SUMMARY OF TOTAL ESTIMATED BILLINGS BY COMMUNITY

2017

2018

COMMUNITY BUDGET BUDGET
BAYSIDE $232,979 $259,525
BROOKFIELD $975,161 $1,089,391
BROWN DEER $793,673 $884,667
BUTLER $202,958 $440,381
CALEDONIA $26,051 $29,111
CUDAHY $1,880,263 $2,175,045
ELM GROVE $339,972 $366,903
FOX POINT $365,456 $409,321
FRANKLIN $2,165,235 $2,417,181
GERMANTOWN $1,563,019 $1,781,376
GLENDALE $973,762 $1,087,732
GREENDALE $797,056 $873,699
GREENFIELD $2,080,442 $2,319,261
HALES CORNERS $464,408 $515,145
MENOMONEE FALLS $1,945,802 $2,200,796
MEQUON $1,244,326 $1,407,618
MILWAUKEE $43,080,279 $47,740,615
MUSKEGO $1,128,923 $1,269,562
NEW BERLIN $1,988,367 $2,144,655
OAK CREEK $2,293,748 $2,620,744
RIVER HILLS $86,117 $97,629
SHOREWOOD $695,725 $776,905
ST. FRANCIS $572,022 $633,507
THIENSVILLE $197,240 $213,632
WAUWATOSA $3,265,714 $3,606,900
WEST ALLIS $3,911,608 $4,373,936
WEST MILWAUKEE $1,030,813 $1,042,639
WHITEFISH BAY $719,584 $795,698
OTHER* $92,065 $177,039

$75,112,768 $83.750.613

* Other includes Milwaukee County Land Fill, Oak Creek Ash, Valley Power Plant and Waste Management.

K:\Housing&Comma&lnd Wasteloads\2018\ALL2018BUDGET 102417.xisx8:23 AM10/25/2017

PERCENT

CHANGE

11.4%
11.7%
11.5%
117.0%
11.7%
15.7%
7.9%
12.0%
11.6%
14.0%
11.7%
9.6%
11.5%
10.9%
13.1%
13.1%
10.8%
12.5%
7.9%
14.3%
13.4%
11.7%
10.7%
8.3%
10.4%
11.8%
1.1%
10.6%
92.3%

11.5%

F-1



Ak

PARTNERS FOR A CLEANER ENVIRONMENT Iltem 6

COMMISSION FILE NO: 17-112-11 DATE INTRODUCED:  November 13, 2017

INTRODUCED BY: Executive Director (Signature on File in the Office of the Commission)

REFERRED BY COMMISSION CHAIRPERSON TO: Policy, Finance, and Personnel Committee

RELATING TO: Declaration of the Public Necessity and Approval of the Acquisition Plat
(Relocation Order) for the Permanent Pigging Station for the Landfill Gas
Pipeline, Project P02003

SUMMARY:

The Commission is requested to approve the acquisition plat for the Permanent Pigging Station
for the Landfill Gas (LFG) Pipeline, Project P02003, and to authorize the Executive Director to
approve future minor changes to the identified parcels and to approve the addition of new
parcels where they have a minor impact on the overall project and land rights acquisition
process.

The approval of the acquisition plat authorizes the Executive Director to execute easements,
licenses, permits, purchase agreements, intergovernmental cooperation agreements,
memorandums of understanding, and any other related real estate documents with property
owners and governmental agencies that have real estate that is affected by the project.

Upon approval and within 20 days, the acquisition plat (relocation order) will be filed with the
Milwaukee County Clerk’s office as required by law, thereby allowing acquisition matters to
proceed.

The District owns, operates and maintains a 19-mile long pipeline that conveys LFG from the
Advanced Disposal (AD) Landfill located in Muskego to the Jones Island Water Reclamation
Facility (JIWRF). The Wisconsin Public Service Commission (WPSC) regulates design,
construction, operation, and maintenance of this pipeline.

ATTACHMENTS: BACKGROUND [ ] KEY ISSUES [ ] RESOLUTION [X
FISCAL NOTE[ ] S/W/MBE[] OTHER X Acquisition Plat

PFP_AcqPlat_P02003_PiggingStation_legislative_flle.docx
10-26-2017

COMMITTEE ACTION: DATE:

COMMISSION ACTION: DATE:




SUMMARY (Cont’d)

Declaration of the Public Necessity and Approval of the Acquisition Plat (Relocation
Order) for the Permanent Pigging Station for the Landfill Gas Pipeline, Project P02003

The District constructed about 12 miles of the pipeline using high density polyethylene
(HDPE), starting at the AD Landfill and ending on College Avenue near the Union Pacific
Railway. At that point, the HDPE pipeline connects to a steel pipeline, that travels to
JIWRF. The District had purchased an existing seven miles of steel pipeline (previously
used to transport petroleum products) and converted it to convey LFG. The transition
point from the new HDPE pipeline to the existing steel pipeline is located on City of
Milwaukee property, leased by the National Guard Refueling Wing (the 128™).

As the two pipelines are different materials, their inner and outer diameters are different.
Equipment used for inspecting, maintaining, and cleaning the steel and HDPE pipelines
are different. Thus, the District is required by the WPSC to provide a permanent means
to access both two pipelines where they intersect. At the time of construction, due to
project time constraints and inability to obtain a permanent easement from the 128™, the
District, with WPSC concurrence, provided a temporary, buried connection between the
two pipelines within temporary real estate rights. The District recognized that it would
need to construct a permanent pigging station at a future date. Currently, any time
pipeline access is needed, that buried connection needs to be excavated.

Project P02003 will provide this permanent two-way pigging station within a permanent
location as required by WPSC.

Staff is requesting one permanent easement and two temporary easements for
construction and ongoing operation and maintenance of the pigging station. Parcels 1
and 2 are on land owned by MKE Fuel Co. LLC (MKE Fuel). MKE Fuel is a consortium
of airlines doing business at General Mitchell International Airport (GMIA). The land is
used to store and pump jet fuel to GMIA through underground pipelines. This site is the
most cost efficient for the station, as it involves the least amount of new and additional
piping and is conveniently accessed off College Avenue. This site is also secured by
barbed wire fence and electronic gates. Parcel 3 is on land owned by the City of
Milwaukee, leased to the 128™, and represents a temporary easement needed to facilitate
construction.

Cost of these acquisitions is anticipated to be within the Executive Director’'s spending
authority.



RESOLUTION

Declaration of the Public Necessity and Approval of the Acquisition Plat (Relocation
Order) for the Permanent Pigging Station for the Landfill Gas Pipeline, Project P02003

RESOLVED, by the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage Commission, that

1.

2.

3.

The attached acquisition plat (relocation order) that identifies Parcels 1, 2, and 3
are approved,;

The Executive Director is authorized to approve future changes to the identified
parcels and to approve the addition of new parcels where they have a minor impact
on the overall project and the land rights acquisition process; and

The Executive Director may accept and execute on behalf of the Commission alll
project-related easement documents, memorandums of understanding,
intergovernmental cooperation agreements, jurisdictional offers, awards of
damages, leases, purchase agreements, deeds of conveyance, permits, licenses,
or any other real estate related documents.



MILWAUKEE METROPOLITAN
SEWERAGE DISTRICT
PROJECT ID P02003

ACQUISITION PLAT

FOR

N88°52'21"E 72.68'

N00°44'33"W 2655.86'

30V 'S

IAAEA IVIYLSNANI

N88°33'58"E 2561.20'

PERMANENT PIGG

STATION FOR THE
LANDFILL GAS PIPELINE =

CITY OF MILWAUKEE
MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

NG

N00°35'24"E 2677.01'

[
/

|

CITY OF MILWAUKEE

_ CITY OF OAK Cregre

R co.

OMPANY

IC RAILROAD C

NOTES:
1) PROPERTY LINES SHOWN ARE BASED ON LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS CONTAINED IN TITLE
COMMITMENTS PROVIDED BY LAND TITLE SERVICES AGENT OF FIRST AMERICAN TITLE
INSURANCE COMPANY. THESE LINES HAVE NOT BEEN VERIFIED BY A FIELD SURVEY.
2) CADASTRAL INFORMATION SHOWN IS FROM MILWAUKEE COUNTY.
3) AERIAL PHOTOS TAKEN FROM 2010 SEWRPG SID IMAGERY.
4) BEARINGS ARE REFERENCED TO THE WISCONSIN STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM,
NORTH AMERICAN DATUM OF 1927 (NAD 27), WISCONSIN SOUTH ZONE.
5) DISTANCES ARE EXPRESSED IN GRID U.S. SURVEY FEET : :
REUSE OF DOCUMENTS VERIFY SCALES | PM MILWAUKEE METROPOLITAN SEWERAGE DISTRICT DRAWING NO. ACP-01
e SIonS NONEORAED HEREIS. oroouencnon | G OLSON S MILWAUKEE METROPOLITAN SEWERAGE DISTRICT (MMSD) SHEET: 1
AN IN:
N INSTRUMENT OF PROFESSIONAL - .+ |DRrRFT PERMANENT PIGGING STATION FOR THE LANDFILL GAS PIPELINE py— OCTOBER 2017
WHOLE OR IN PART, FOR ANY OTHER R CHAVEZ
. IF NOT ONE INCH ON v
PROJECT WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONTRACT: P02003E01
AUTHORIZATION OF THE MILWAUKEE THIS SHEET, ADJUST CHK PARTNERS FOR A CLEANER ENVIRONMENT
METROPOLITAN SEWERAGE DISTRICT soaes accoromeLy. | D. TALARCZYK REV.NO. | DATE REVISION DESCRIPTION BY |APVD MMSD FILE: ACP01.dwg




SCHEDULE OF LANDS & INTERESTS REQUIRED

TOTAL AREA (SQ. FT.)

PARCEL | SHEET
noneer | Nomeer | TAX KEY NUMBER ADDRESS OWNER / INTEREST HOLDER INTEREST REQUIRED ST oT oz e — = REMARKS
1 3 721-999-9110 | 1701 E. COLLEGE AVENUE MILWAUKEE FUEL COMPANY LLC PERMANENT EASEMENT 328,442 2,890
2 3 721-999-9110 | 1701 E. COLLEGE AVENUE MILWAUKEE FUEL COMPANY LLC TEMPORARY EASEMENT 328,442 1723
3 3 684-999-9000 | 809 N. BROADWAY CITY OF MILWAUKEE/128th AIR NATIONAL GUARD TEMPORARY EASEMENT 1,950,708 1411
REUSE OF DOCUMENTS | VERIFY SCALES | PM MILWAUKEE METROPOLITAN SEWERAGE DISTRICT DRAWING NO- ACP-02
DESIONS INGORAORATED LEREN S oronemenon [G. OLSON MILWAUKEE METROPOLITAN SEWERAGE DISTRICT (MMSD) SHEET: 2
AN
ANUINSTRUENT OF PROFESSIONAL o oRAe | DRFT PERMANENT PIGGING STATION FOR THE LANDFILL GAS PIPELINE Py OCTORER 2017
'WHOLE OR IN PART, FOR ANY OTHER R CHAVEZ
’ IF NOT ONE INCH ON V
PROJECT WITHOUT THE WRITTEN HIS SHEET ADJLST CHK CONTRACT: P02003E01
‘ PARTNERS FOR A CLEANER ENVIRONVENT — ACPOZdwa

AUTHORIZATION OF THE MILWAUKEE
METROPOLITAN SEWERAGE DISTRICT.

SCALES ACCORDINGLY.

D. TALARCZYK

REV. NO.

DATE

REVISION DESCRIPTION

BY | APVD




o
55}
o)
v
©
N
2
3
3 .»'
gl ,»*
2| |
; CITY OF MILWAUKEE / 128th f
; EXISTING AIR NATIONAY. GUARD % [
‘ FENCE 684-999/9000 / 3
/ s | — R,
# { L ———————— S
74 /  E—
| | \)‘,‘ 1
e [
l\ = // ];
B ' f I =
N88°33'58"E 2561.20 — R el i
N88°5221"E 72.68' __ S —__ = — = P\ 7T ]
- - COLLEGE AVENUE | f
=
|
7 |
/ 2 |
: [
RALRARS |
EXISTING R f
FENCE 5 |
MILWAUKEE FUEL
MILWAUKEE FUEL COMPANY LLC
COMPANY LLC 721-999-9110
721-999-9110
=
8
o w
W
A I||x
m H IS
3 =/
S 2lio
<! =l
% 06
(
|
. |
H |
|
|
w |
w
X
2
W 2 y ; .
5 | 0 30 60 120
. |
5 | 2
S I -
REUSE OF DOCUMENTS VERIFY SCALES | PM MILWAUKEE METROPOLITAN SEWERAGE DISTRICT DRAWING NO. ACP-04
DESIONS INGORAORNTED HEREN oo nonon [ OLSON MILWAUKEE METROPOLITAN SEWERAGE DISTRICT (MMSD) SHEET: 4
AN INSTRUNENT OF PROFESSIONAL o ¢ |oreFT PERMANENT PIGGING STATION FOR THE LANDFILL GAS PIPELINE - OCTOBER 2017
SERVICE AND IS NOT TO BE USED, IN o 1 o
'WHOLE OR IN PART, FOR ANY OTHER R CHAVEZ %
PROJECT WITHOUT THE WRITTEN ‘::z;:s:f/g’f; CHK CONTRACT: P02003E01
AUTHORIZATION OF THE MILWAUKEE i
METROPOLITAN SEWERAGE DISTRICT sonLes accoromaLy. | D. TALARCZYK REV.NO. | DATE REVISION DESCRIPTION BY | APVD | PARTNERS FORACLEANER ENVIRONHENT MMSD FILE: ACP04.dwg




————

\ CITY OF MILWAUKEE / 128th

EXISTING AIR NATIONAL GUARD /
FENCE \ 684-999-9000 /

N00°44'33"W 2655.86"

V ieee——x |
= | == =i
- N88°33'58'E 256120 === - =
N88°52'21"E 72.68' o =g — == —= T . ]
- == COLLEGE AVENUE | /
|/ ” |
| t
R I
— 1 77
9 EXISTING / iy
/ FENCE 5
/ MILWAUKEE FUEL
}'.' MILWAUKEE FUEL COMPANY LLC
: COMPANY LLC 721-999-9110
3 721-999-9110
21
St
St u
& |
3 /5
i o
m H &
3 SIE
N |l
N olx
Sy ]
3 >
Y Ellz
olila
‘ $
w
w
4
=)
) e ’ ]
E 0 30 60 120
=
w
(e]
S
REUSE OF DOCUMENTS VERIFY SCALES PM MILWAUKEE METROPOLITAN SEWERAGE DISTRICT DRAWING NO.: ACP-04
THIS DOCUMENT AND THE IDEAS AND BAR IS ONE INCH ON G. OLSON 1{ q
THIS DOCUMENT AND THE IDEAS ANE IS ONE o o MILWAUKEE METROPOLITAN SEWERAGE DISTRICT (MMSD) SHEET: 4
AN IN:
SERV‘SSER:’QADE:‘;ﬁ;ﬁg’géﬁ%‘% P DRFT PERMANENT PIGGING STATION FOR THE LANDFILL GAS PIPELINE DATE: OCTOBER 2017
WHOLE OR IN PART, FOR ANY OTHER R CHAVEZ
. IF NOT ONE INCH ON 7
PROJECT WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONTRACT: P02003E01
AUTHORIZATION OF THE MILWAUKEE THIS SHEET, ADJUST CHK PARTNERS FOR A CLEANER ENVIRONMENT
METROPOLITAN SEWERAGE DISTRICT. SCALES ACCORDINGLY. D. TALARCZYK REV. NO. REVISION DESCRIPTION BY | APVD ACP04.dwg




Ak

PARTNERS FOR A CLEANER ENVIRONMENT Item 7

COMMISSION FILE NO: 17-113-11 DATE INTRODUCED:  November 13, 2017

INTRODUCED BY: Executive Director (Signature on File in the Office of the Commission)

REFERRED BY COMMISSION CHAIRPERSON TO: Policy, Finance, and Personnel Committee

RELATING TO:  Authorizing and Providing for the Sale and Issuance of Two Series of
General Obligation Sewerage System Promissory Notes, Levying Taxes for
the Payment Thereof, and All Related Details

SUMMARY:

As part of the State of Wisconsin Clean Water Fund Program (CWFP), the Commission is
requested to approve the issuance of up to $9,538,326 in general obligation notes to finance
two capital projects. These loans are included in the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage
District’s (District) 2017 Capital Budget.

Approval of the attached sale resolutions will enable the District to finance project expenditures
over a 20-year period with two CWFP loans. The District will save an estimated $1,183,031 in
interest costs over the 20-year period of debt repayment by obtaining low interest financing from
the CWFP as compared to issuing its own debt (1.76% versus 2.85%).

The State of Wisconsin requires that all borrowing municipalities provide security for repayment
of loans. One form of security is a general obligation pledge of ad valorem taxes. This pledge
requires a resolution authorizing a sale of general obligation bonds or notes and provides for the
collection of a non-repealable, direct annual tax to pay the principal and interest on the bonds
or notes (i.e., the CWFP loans). The State is the purchaser and owner of the securities.

A two-thirds affirmative vote of the Commission is required for approval.

ATTACHMENTS: BACKGROUND [X] KEY ISSUES [X] RESOLUTION [X
FISCAL NOTE[ ] S/W/MBE[ ] OTHER [X] sale Resolutions

PFP_Sale_lIssuance_Promissory_Notes_3229 3234 legislative_file.docx
10-20-17

COMMITTEE ACTION: DATE:

COMMISSION ACTION: DATE:




BACKGROUND

Authorizing and Providing for the Sale and Issuance of Two Series of General
Obligation Sewerage System Promissory Notes, Levying Taxes for the Payment
Thereof, and All Related Details

The Commission is requested to approve the issuance of up to $9,538,326 in general

obligation notes as security for two CWFP loans for the following projects:

Note | CWFP District . Maximum Interest
. . Project Name Loan
Series | Number | Project Rate
Amount
2017B | 3229-01 | C98051 | Conveyance Gate $3,852,100 1.76%
Rehabilitation, Phase 3
2017C | 3234-01 | J04041 | Jones Island $5,686,226 1.76%
Milorganite® Facilities
Improvements, Phase 3
Total $9,538,326

District projects undertaken to maintain permit compliance are eligible for 20-year loans
from the CWFP at an interest rate below the effective rate for state revenue bonds, with
market rate funds currently available at 3.20%. The compliance maintenance interest
rate is currently 55% of the CWFP market rate or 1.76% (3.20% x 55%).

Estimated principal and interest payments for the loans are as follows:

Year
2017
2019 — 2023
2024 — 2037
Total

Principal

$ 402,035

2,118,838
7,017,453
$9,538,326

Interest
$ 144,751
712,066
899,531
$1,756,348

Total

$ 546,787
2,830,903
7,916,984
$11,294.674

The District will save an estimated $1,183,031 in interest costs over the 20-year period of
debt repayment by obtaining low interest financing from the CWFP as compared to
issuing its own debt (1.76% versus 2.85%).



KEY ISSUES

Authorizing and Providing for the Sale and Issuance of Two Series of General
Obligation Sewerage System Promissory Notes, Levying Taxes for the Payment
Thereof, and All Related Details

Each Financial Assistance Agreement (FAA) for a CWFP loan requires that the borrowing
municipality establish one or more dedicated sources of revenue that the State of
Wisconsin Department of Administration deems sufficient for repayment of a project loan
or loans. The municipality’s obligation to repay a project loan may be in the form of a
general obligation or a revenue obligation. The District has elected to make a general
obligation pledge of ad valorem taxes.

This pledge requires a resolution authorizing a sale of general obligation bonds or notes
for the purpose of financing capital projects and provides for the collection of a direct
annual tax sufficient in amount to pay and discharge the principal and interest on these
bonds or notes. The bonds or notes are in effect sold to the State of Wisconsin.

The attached sale resolutions for the two capital projects accomplish the following
objectives:

e Provide low interest rate financing of capital project expenditures within the
financing objectives set in the 2018 Capital Budget and long-range financing plan.

e Authorize the District to sell up to $9,538,326 of notes for the CWFP to the State
of Wisconsin in accordance with the terms and conditions of the FAA’s. Authorizes
the Commission Chairperson and the Commission Secretary to execute the FAA’s.

e Provide security for the State of Wisconsin.

e Provide for levying upon all the taxable property in the District, a non-repealable,
direct annual tax in an amount sufficient to pay the principal and interest on the
notes (i.e., the CWFP loan).

e Provide for continuing disclosure to bondholders in compliance with Rule 15c2-
12(b)(5) promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission.

e Provide a repayment schedule up to 20 years.

A two-thirds affirmative vote of the Commission is required for approval.



RESOLUTION

Authorizing and Providing for the Sale and Issuance of Two Series of General
Obligation Sewerage System Promissory Notes, Levying Taxes for the Payment
Thereof, and All Related Details

WHEREAS, the State of Wisconsin Clean Water Fund Program permits the Milwaukee
Metropolitan Sewerage Commission to obtain financial assistance for the construction of
eligible wastewater pollution abatement projects; and

WHEREAS, the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage Commission intends to authorize,
sell, and issue general obligation sewerage system promissory notes for two separate
Clean Water Fund Program projects as described below; and

WHEREAS, the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage Commission has determined to sell
the notes by private rather than public sale due to efficiencies of borrowing through the
Clean Water Fund Program, including reduced issuance costs, flexible draw-down of
principal and favorable interest rates.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage
Commission, that the resolutions attached hereto and described below are hereby
adopted.

1. “A Resolution Authorizing and Providing for the Sale and Issuance of up to
$3,852,100 General Obligation Sewerage System Promissory Notes, Series
20178, Levying Taxes for the Payment Thereof, and All Related Details” for CWFP
Project Number 3229-01, consisting of replacement of hydraulic cylinders and/or
hydraulic accumulator tanks at nine dropshafts in the MMSD conveyance system,
replacement of hydraulic conduits, electrical conduits, structural grating, handrails,
electrical systems, and associated work all in connection with the Conveyance
Gate Rehabilitation Phase 3 Project.

2. “A Resolution Authorizing and Providing for the Sale and Issuance of up to
$5,686,226 General Obligation Sewerage System Promissory Notes, Series
2017C, Levying Taxes for the Payment Thereof, and All Related Details” for CWFP
Project Number 3234-01, consisting of the replacement of main recycle screw
conveyors #3 and #4, west recycle screw conveyors #1 and #2, recycle/product
bin bucket discharge transfer screw conveyors #1 and #2, and recycle bin bucket
elevators #1 and #2 in connection with Phase 3 of the Milorganite® Facility
Improvements Project.



A Resolution Authorizing and Providing for the Sale and Issuance of up to
$3,852,100 General Obligation Sewerage System Promissory Notes, Series 2017B,
Levying Taxes for the Payment Thereof,
and All Related Details

RECITALS

The Metropolitan Sewerage District Commission (the “Governing Body”) of the
Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District, Wisconsin (the “Issuer”) makes the following
findings and determinations:

1. Certain improvements to the Issuer’s sewerage system (the “System”) are
necessary to meet the needs of the communities served by the System and the residents thereof,
consisting of replacement of hydraulic cylinders and/or hydraulic accumulator tanks at nine
dropshafts in the MMSD conveyance system, replacement of hydraulic conduits, electrical
conduits, structural grating, handrails, electrical systems, and associated work all in connection
with the Conveyance Gate Rehabilitation Phase 3 Project (collectively, the “Project”).

2. The Project has been assigned Clean Water Fund Program Project No.
3229-01 by the State of Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (the “Department of
Natural Resources”), and as defined in Department of Natural Resources approval letter for the
Plans and Specifications of the Project, or portions thereof, issued under Section 281.41 of the
Wisconsin Statutes; and assigned Number S-2014-0627 dated November 24, 2014, and Number
S-2016-0426, dated August 15, 2016.

3. The Governing Body wishes to borrow the funds needed for the Project by
selling and issuing general obligation sewerage system promissory notes pursuant to the
provisions of Section 67.12 (12) of the Wisconsin Statutes.

4, The Issuer has taken all actions required by law and has the power to sell
and issue the $3,852,100 Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District, Wisconsin General
Obligation Sewerage System Promissory Notes, Series 2017B authorized by this resolution.

RESOLUTIONS

The Governing Body resolves as follows:
Section 1. Definitions.

In this resolution, the following terms have the meanings given in this section,
unless the context requires another meaning.

“Commission Officers” means the Chairperson and the Secretary of the
Governing Body of the Issuer. These are the officers required by law to execute general
obligations on the Issuer’s behalf.



“Continuing Disclosure Agreement” means the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement, dated as of the Original Issue Date, to be executed by the Issuer and delivered on the
closing date for the Obligations.

“CWFP” means the State of Wisconsin Clean Water Fund Program.

“Debt Service Fund” means the fund created by the Issuer pursuant to
Section 67.11 of the Wisconsin Statutes to provide for the payment of debt service on its general
obligations.

“Debt Service Fund Account” has the meaning given in Section 13.

“Director of Finance/Treasurer” means the Issuer’s Director of
Finance/Treasurer.

“Financial Assistance Agreement” means the Financial Assistance Agreement,
dated as of the Original Issue Date, by and between the Issuer and the State of Wisconsin by the
Department of Natural Resources and the Department of Administration, pursuant to which the
Obligations are to be issued and sold to the State, in substantially the form accompanying this
resolution and incorporated herein by reference.

“Financial Officer” means the Director of Finance/Treasurer.

“Fiscal Agent” means the Director of Finance/Treasurer or any successor fiscal
agent appointed by the Issuer to act as authentication agent, paying agent, and registrar for the
Obligations pursuant to Section 67.10 (2) of the Wisconsin Statutes.

“Governing Body” means the Issuer’s Metropolitan Sewerage District
Commission.

“Issuer” means the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District, Wisconsin.

“Obligations” means the $3,852,100 Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District,
Wisconsin General Obligation Sewerage System Promissory Notes, Series 2017B, which will be
issued pursuant to this resolution.

“Original Issue Date” means December 13, 2017.

“Project” has the meaning given in the recitals to this resolution.

“Purchase Price” means up to $3,852,100.

“Record Date” means the 15th day (whether or not a business day) of the
calendar month just before each regularly scheduled interest payment date for the Obligations.

“Recording Officer” means the Secretary of the Issuer’s Governing Body.

“Register” means the register maintained by the Fiscal Agent at its principal
office, in which the Fiscal Agent records:



Q) The name and address of the owner of each Obligation.

(i) All transfers of each Obligation.

“State” means the State of Wisconsin Department of Administration.
Section 2. Exhibits.

The attached exhibits are also a part of this resolution as though they were fully
written out in this resolution:

() Exhibit A— Form of Obligation.
(i) Exhibit B — Notice to Electors of Sale.

Section 3. Purposes of Borrowing; Issuance of Obligations.

The Governing Body authorizes the Obligations and orders that they be prepared,
executed, and issued. The Obligations will be fully registered, negotiable, general obligation
sewerage system promissory notes of the Issuer in the principal amount of up to $3,852,100. The
Obligations will be issued pursuant to the provisions of the Financial Assistance Agreement and
Section 67.12 (12) of the Wisconsin Statutes to pay the costs of the Project and to pay certain
expenses of issuing the Obligations (including, but not limited to, printing costs and fees for
financial consultants, bond counsel, rating agencies, insurance, and registration, as applicable).

Section 4. Terms of Obligations.

The Obligations will be named “Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District,
Wisconsin General Obligation Sewerage System Promissory Notes, Series 2017B.” The
Obligations will be dated the Original Issue Date, even if they are actually issued or executed on
another date. Each Obligation will also be dated the date to which it is authenticated by the
Fiscal Agent. That date is its registration date.

The face amount of each Obligation will be in denominations of $.01 or any
multiple of $.01 up to the principal amount authorized for that maturity.

The Obligations will bear interest from the Original Issue Date, or from the date
principal evidenced by the Obligations was drawn by the Issuer (as described below), or from the
most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid. Interest will be due and
payable on each May 1 and November 1 until the principal of the Obligations has been paid,
beginning on May 1, 2018. Interest on each Obligation will be (i) computed on the basis of a
360-day year of twelve 30-day months and (ii) payable to the person or entity in whose name the
Obligation is registered on the Register at the end of the day on the applicable Record Date. The
Obligations will be numbered consecutively as may be required to comply with any applicable
rules or customs or as determined by the Commission Officers executing the Obligations. The
Obligations will mature on May 1, 2037 and will bear interest at the rate of 1.76%.

The principal evidenced by the Obligations may be drawn upon by the Issuer in
accordance with the Financial Assistance Agreement. The principal of the Obligations so drawn

-3-



is payable in annual installments on each May 1, beginning on May 1, 2018, in the amounts set
forth in the repayment schedule attached as Exhibit B to the Financial Assistance Agreement and
in the attached Schedule 2 to Exhibit A. The repayment schedule has been calculated by the
State assuming the full principal amount of the Obligations has been drawn by the Issuer on the
Original Issue Date. The repayment schedule will be adjusted by the State from time to time
based on the actual principal amounts drawn by the Issuer. The principal amounts so drawn shall
be repaid in an amount equal to an amount which when amortized over the remaining term of the
Obligations plus current payments of interest (but only on amounts drawn) at the interest rate set
forth above shall result in equal annual payments of the total of principal of and interest due on
the Obligations. The State shall record such draws of principal and principal repayments in the
format shown on the attached Schedule 1 to Exhibit A.

The principal of and interest on the Obligations will be payable in lawful money
of the United States of America.

Section 5. Fiscal Agent.

The Issuer appoints the Fiscal Agent to act as authentication agent, paying agent,
and registrar for the Obligations. Among other things, the Fiscal Agent must maintain the
Register.

Section 6. Redemption.

The Obligations are subject to optional redemption prior to maturity only as
provided in the Financial Assistance Agreement and upon the written consent of the CWFP.

Section 7. Manner of Payment/Transfers/Redemption Notices.

Payment. On each principal payment date (whether at maturity, installment
payment date, or redemption date) and on each interest payment date, the Fiscal Agent will pay
the principal of, and interest on, each Obligation by electronic funds transfer or by check mailed
to the person or entity in whose name the Obligation is registered on the Register at the end of
the day on the applicable Record Date.

Transfers. Each Obligation is transferable, only upon the Register, for a like
aggregate principal amount of the same maturity and interest rate in denominations of $.01. A
transfer may be requested by the registered owner in person or by a person with a written power
of attorney. The Obligation must be surrendered to the Fiscal Agent, together with a written
instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Fiscal Agent signed by the registered owner or by the
person with the written power of attorney. The Issuer will issue one or more new fully registered
Obligations in the same aggregate principal amount to the transferee or transferees, as applicable,
in exchange for the surrendered Obligations and upon the payment of a charge sufficient to
reimburse the Issuer or the Fiscal Agent for any tax, fee, or other governmental charge required
to be paid with respect to such registration.

The Fiscal Agent will not be required to make any transfer of the Obligations

(i) during the 15 calendar days before the date of any proposed redemption of the Obligations, or
(i) with respect to any particular Obligation, after the Obligation has been called for redemption.

-4 -



Partial Redemptions. If less than all of the Obligations have been called for
redemption, then the State will adjust the principal repayment schedule to reflect such partial
redemption.

Notice of Redemption. So long as the CWFP is the registered owner of the
Obligations, no redemption notice is required to be sent in the event of any redemption of the
Obligations.

Accrual of Interest. If payment of an Obligation called for redemption has been
made or provided for, then interest on the Obligation stops accruing on the stated redemption
date.

Register. The Issuer and the Fiscal Agent may treat the entity or person in whose
name any Obligation is registered on the Register as the absolute owner of the Obligation for all
purposes whatsoever under this resolution.

Section 8. Form of Obligations.

The Obligations shall be in substantially the form shown in Exhibit A.
Omissions, insertions, or variations are permitted if they are deemed necessary or desirable and
are consistent with this resolution or any supplemental resolution.

Section 9. Execution of Obligations.

The Obligations shall be signed by the persons who are the Commission Officers
on the Original Issue Date. The Obligations shall be sealed with the Issuer’s corporate seal (or a
facsimile), if the Issuer has one, and they shall also be authenticated by the manual signature of
the Fiscal Agent.

The Obligations will be valid and binding even if before they are delivered any
person whose signature appears on the Obligations is no longer living or is no longer the person
authorized to sign the Obligations. In that event, the Obligations will have the same effect as if
the person were living or were still the person authorized to sign the Obligations.

A facsimile signature may be used as long as at least one signature of a
Commission Officer is a manual signature or the Fiscal Agent’s certificate of authentication has
a manual signature. If a facsimile signature is used, then it will be treated as the officer’s own
signature.

Section 10. Continuing Disclosure.

The appropriate officers of the Issuer are directed to sign the Continuing
Disclosure Agreement, and the Issuer agrees to comply with all of its terms. The Issuer shall
amend the Continuing Disclosure Agreement from time to time as the CWFP may require and to
conform with any changes in rules or regulations by the Securities and Exchange Commission
with respect to continuing disclosure.



Section 11.  Sale of Obligations; Financial Assistance Agreement.

The Issuer awards the sale of the Obligations to the CWFP at the Purchase Price,
plus any accrued interest from the Original Issue Date to the date of delivery of the Obligations.
The Issuer approves and accepts the Financial Assistance Agreement presented by the CWFP to
purchase the Obligations and agrees to perform all obligations of the Issuer set forth therein. The
Commission Officers are directed to (i) sign the Financial Assistance Agreement in the Issuer’s
name and (ii) take any additional actions needed to complete the sale of the Obligations,
including arranging for a closing of the sale. The Purchase Price for the Obligations shall be
paid upon request therefor as provided in the Financial Assistance Agreement.

The Commission Officers are directed to sign the Obligations and to arrange for
delivery of the Obligations to the CWFP upon payment by the CWFP of the Purchase Price, plus
any accrued interest, as required by this resolution.

Unless waived by the CWFP, the sale of the Obligations is conditioned upon the
Issuer furnishing the following items to the CWFP:

Q) The Obligations, together with the written, unqualified approving opinions
of the law firms of MWH Law Group LLP and Foley & Lardner LLP, co-
bond counsel, evidencing the legality of the Obligations and that interest
on the Obligations will be excluded from gross income for federal income
tax purposes.

(i) Atranscript of the proceedings relating to the issuance of the Obligations.

(iii) A certificate showing that no litigation has been threatened or is pending
that would affect the legality of the Obligations or the right of the Issuer to
issue them at the time of their delivery.

Section 12. General Obligation Pledge; Tax Levy.

For the prompt payment of the principal of and interest on the Obligations, the
Issuer irrevocably pledges its full faith and credit. The Issuer hereby levies upon all taxable
property in its territory a direct, annual, and irrepealable tax in an amount sufficient to pay, and
for the express purpose of paying, the interest on the Obligations as it falls due and also to pay
and discharge the principal of the Obligations on the principal installment payment dates and at
maturity.

This tax shall be carried from year to year into the Issuer’s tax roll. It shall be
collected in addition to all other taxes and in the same manner and at the same time as all other
taxes. The amount of this tax that is carried into the Issuer’s tax roll may be reduced in any year
by the amount of any surplus money in the Debt Service Fund Account available to pay debt
service on the Obligations for such year. Assuming the entire principal amount of the
Obligations is drawn, the tax for each year the levy is made will be in the following amounts:



Debt Service Debt Service

Amount Due in Amount Due in

Levy Year Following Year Levy Year Following Year
2017 $ 220,822.45 2027 $228,459.75
2018 228,706.95 2028 228,429.81
2019 228,681.36 2029 228,399.35
2020 228,655.32 2030 228,368.34
2021 228,628.82 2031 228,336.79
2022 228,601.85 2032 228,304.68
2023 228,574.42 2033 228,272.01
2024 228,546.50 2034 228,238.78
2025 228,518.09 2035 228,204.95
2026 228,489.17 2036 228,170.52

Section 13. Debt Service Fund Account.

The Issuer shall create a separate account within the Debt Service Fund solely for
the Obligations (the “Debt Service Fund Account”), which shall be maintained and
administered as provided in Section 67.11 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The Director of
Finance/Treasurer is directed to keep the proceeds of the taxes levied under this resolution, when
they are collected, in the Debt Service Fund Account. Any accrued interest received at the time
of delivery of the Obligations and the premium, if any, paid to the Issuer by the CWFP in excess
of the stated principal amount of the Obligations must be deposited into the Debt Service Fund
Account and used to pay interest on the Obligations. If the money in the Debt Service Fund
Account is insufficient to make a payment of principal of or interest on the Obligations on a date
on which such a payment is due, then the Issuer will promptly provide the necessary funds to
make the payment from other available sources. Money in the Debt Service Fund Account may
be temporarily invested as provided in Section 66.0603 (1m) of the Wisconsin Statutes.

Section 14. Borrowed Money Fund.

In accordance with Section 67.10(3) of the Wisconsin Statutes, the sale proceeds
of the Obligations (not including any accrued interest or premium received) shall be deposited
and kept by the Director of Finance/Treasurer in a separate fund. The fund shall be designated
with both the name of the Obligations and the name Borrowed Money Fund (herein referred to as
the “Borrowed Money Fund”). Money in the Borrowed Money Fund, including any earnings,
shall be (i) used to pay the costs of the Project, the costs of issuing the Obligations, and the costs
of investing amounts in the Borrowed Money Fund, or (ii) transferred to the Debt Service Fund
Account as provided by law. Money in the Borrowed Money Fund may be temporarily invested
as provided in Section 66.0603 (1m) of the Wisconsin Statutes; provided, however, that pursuant
to the terms of the Financial Assistance Agreement, money in the Borrowed Money Fund must

-7-



be disbursed within three business days after the Original Issue Date, or the date of receipt by the
Issuer of any draws of principal on the Obligations, and must not be invested in an interest
bearing account.

Section 15.  Publication of Notice.

The Recording Officer is directed to publish notice that the Issuer has agreed to
sell the Obligations. The notice shall be published in the Issuer’s official newspaper as a class 1
notice under Chapter 985 of the Wisconsin Statutes promptly after the execution of the Financial
Assistant Agreement. The notice shall be in substantially the form shown in Exhibit B. The
Recording Officer shall obtain proof, in affidavit form, of the publication, and shall compare the
notice as published with the attached form to make sure that no mistake was made in publication.

Section 16.  Authorization of Officers.

The appropriate officers of the Issuer are directed to prepare and furnish the
following items to the CWFP and the attorneys approving the legality of the Obligations:

Q) Certified copies of proceedings and records of the Issuer relating to the
Obligations and to the financial condition and affairs of the Issuer.

(i) Other affidavits, certificates, and information that may be required to show
the facts about the legality of the Obligations, as such facts appear on the
books and records under the officer’s custody or control or as are
otherwise known to the officer.

All certified copies, affidavits, certificates, and information furnished for such purpose will be
representations of the Issuer as to the facts they present.

Section 17. Tax Law Covenants.

The Issuer covenants that it will comply with all requirements of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder, that
must be satisfied so that interest on the Obligations will be excluded from gross income for
federal income tax purposes.

Section 18. Amendments.

This resolution may (i) be amended from time to time without the written consent
of the CWFP, to cure any ambiguity, administrative conflicts, formal defect, or omission or
procedural inconsistency of this resolution, and (ii) be amended from time to time with the
written consent of the CWFP, to modify any terms of the Obligations deemed necessary or
advisable by the Issuer or the CWFP.

In the event the CWFP sells all or a portion of the Obligations, written consent
referred to in (ii) above shall be required by the owners of not less than two-thirds of the
principal amount then outstanding of the Obligations.



Section 19.  Further Authorization.

The Issuer authorizes its officers, attorneys, and other agents or employees to do
all acts required of them to carry out the purposes of this resolution.

Section 20. Conflict with Prior Acts.

In case any part of a prior action of the Governing Body conflicts with this
resolution, that part of the prior action is hereby rescinded.

Section 21.  Severability of Invalid Provisions.

If a court holds any provision of this resolution to be illegal or invalid, then the
illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provision of this resolution.

Section 22. Resolution Effective upon Adoption and Approval.

This resolution takes effect upon its adoption and approval in the manner
provided by law.

[Signature Page Follows]



Adopted: November 27, 2017.

John Hermes
Commission Chairperson

Anna Kettlewell
Commission Secretary

[Signature Page to Series 2017B Resolution]



EXHIBIT A

FORM OF OBLIGATION

STATE OF WISCONSIN
MILWAUKEE METROPOLITAN SEWERAGE DISTRICT

No. R-1 Registered
$3,852,100

GENERAL OBLIGATION SEWERAGE SYSTEM PROMISSORY NOTE,

SERIES 2017B
Interest Maturity Original
Rate Date Issue Date CusIP
1.76% May 1, 2037 December 13, 2017 None
REGISTERED OWNER: STATE OF WISCONSIN CLEAN WATER FUND PROGRAM
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: THREE MILLION EIGHT HUNDRED FIFTY-TWO THOUSAND

ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS

THE MILWAUKEE METROPOLITAN SEWERAGE DISTRICT, WISCONSIN (herein called
the “Issuer”), hereby acknowledges itself to owe and for value received promises to pay the
Principal Amount to the Registered Owner on the Maturity Date or earlier installment payment
date (as hereinafter described), and interest on the Principal Amount from the Original Issue
Date at the annual rate of the Interest Rate. The actual interest amount due is based on the
amount of principal drawn, from the dates so drawn (as hereinafter described), or from the most
recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid. Interest is due and payable on each
May 1 and November 1 until the Principal Amount has been paid, beginning on May 1, 2018.
Interest is computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.

This Obligation is one of a duly authorized issue of notes (the “Obligations”) of
the Issuer of an aggregate principal amount of $3,852,100, all of like tenor, except as to
denomination, issued by the Issuer pursuant to the provisions of Section 67.12 (12) of the
Wisconsin Statutes, and is authorized by the resolution duly adopted by the governing body of
the Issuer on November 27, 2017, entitled: “A Resolution Authorizing and Providing for the
Sale and Issuance of up to $3,852,100 General Obligation Sewerage System Promissory Notes,
Series 2017B, Levying Taxes for the Payment Thereof, and All Related Details” (the
“Resolution”). The Obligations are issuable only in the form of fully registered notes.

The Principal Amount evidenced by this Obligation may be drawn upon by the
Issuer in accordance with the Financial Assistance Agreement (as defined in the Resolution).

Exhibit A — Page 1



The Principal Amount so drawn shall be repaid in annual installments on each May 1, beginning
on May 1, 2018, in the amounts set forth in the repayment schedule attached as Exhibit B to the
Financial Assistance Agreement and in the attached Schedule 2. The repayment schedule has
been calculated by the State of Wisconsin Department of Administration (the “State”) assuming
the full Principal Amount of the Obligations has been drawn by the Issuer on the Original Issue
Date. The repayment schedule will be adjusted by the State from time to time based on the
actual Principal Amounts drawn by the Issuer. The Principal Amounts so drawn shall be repaid
in an amount equal to an amount which when amortized over the remaining term of this
Obligation plus current payments of interest (but only on amounts drawn hereunder) at the
Interest Rate shall result in equal annual payments of the total of principal of and interest on the
Obligations. The State shall record draws of principal and principal repayments in the format
shown on the attached Schedule 1.

On each principal payment date (whether at maturity or earlier installment
payment or redemption date) and on each interest payment date, the Director of
Finance/Treasurer of the Issuer (who will act as authentication agent, paying agent, and registrar
for the Obligations), or any successor fiscal agent appointed by the Issuer to act as authentication
agent, paying agent, and registrar for the Obligations under Section 67.10 (2) of the Wisconsin
Statutes (hereinafter called the “Fiscal Agent”), will pay the principal of, and interest on, this
Obligation by electronic funds transfer or by check mailed to the person or entity in whose name
this Obligation is registered on the register (hereinafter called the “Register””) maintained by the
Fiscal Agent at the end of the 15" day (whether or not a business day) of the calendar month just
before a regularly scheduled interest payment date for the Obligations (the “Record Date”).

The principal of and interest on this Obligation is payable in lawful money of the
United States of America. For the prompt payment of the principal of and interest on this
Obligation, the Issuer has irrevocably pledged its full faith and credit. The Issuer has levied
upon all taxable property in its territory a direct, annual, and irrepealable tax sufficient in amount
to pay, and for the express purpose of paying, the interest on this Obligation as it falls due and
the principal of this Obligation on the Maturity Date or earlier installment payment date.

The Obligations are subject to optional redemption prior to maturity only as
provided in the Financial Assistance Agreement and upon the written consent of the Registered
Owner.

Transfers. Each Obligation is transferable, only upon the Register, for a like
aggregate principal amount of the same maturity and interest rate in
denominations of $.01. A transfer may be requested by the registered owner in
person or by a person with a written power of attorney. The Obligation shall be
surrendered to the Fiscal Agent, together with a written instrument of transfer
satisfactory to the Fiscal Agent signed by the registered owner or by the person
with the written power of attorney. The Issuer will issue one or more new fully
registered Obligations, in the same aggregate principal amount to the transferee or
transferees, as applicable, in exchange for the surrendered Obligations and upon
the payment of a charge sufficient to reimburse the Issuer or the Fiscal Agent for
any tax, fee, or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such
registration.

Exhibit A — Page 2



The Fiscal Agent will not be required to make any transfer of the Obligations

(i) during the 15 calendar days before the date of any proposed redemption of the
Obligations, or (ii) with respect to any particular Obligation, after such Obligation
has been called for redemption.

Partial Redemptions. If less than all of the Obligations have been called for
redemption, then the State will adjust the principal repayment schedule to reflect
such partial redemption.

Notice of Redemption. So long as the State of Wisconsin Clean Water Fund
Program is the registered owner of the Obligations, no redemption notice is
required to be sent in the event of any redemption of the Obligations.

Accrual of Interest. If payment of an Obligation called for redemption has been
made or provided for, then interest on the Obligation stops accruing on the stated
redemption date.

Register. The Issuer and the Fiscal Agent may treat the entity or person in whose
name this Obligation is registered on the Register as the absolute owner of this
Obligation for all purposes.

The Issuer certifies, recites, and declares that all acts, conditions, and procedures
required by law to exist, to have happened, and to be performed, leading up to and in the issuing
of this Obligation and of the issue of which it is a part, do exist, have happened, and have been
performed in regular and due form, time, and manner as required by law; that the indebtedness of
the Issuer, including this Obligation and the issue of which it is a part, does not exceed any
limitation, general or special, imposed by law; and that a valid, direct, annual and irrepealable
tax has been levied by the Issuer sufficient to pay the interest on this Obligation when it falls due
and also to pay and discharge the principal of this Obligation at maturity or earlier installment
payment date.

Exhibit A — Page 3



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer, by its governing body, has caused this
Obligation to be executed in its name and on its behalf by the manual or facsimile signatures of
its Commission Chairperson and Commission Secretary and to be sealed with its corporate seal
(or a facsimile thereof), if any, all as of the date specified above.

MILWAUKEE METROPOLITAN SEWERAGE DISTRICT,
WISCONSIN

By:

John Hermes
Commission Chairperson
[SEAL]

And:
Anna Kettlewell
Commission Secretary

Certificate of Authentication

Dated: December 13, 2017

This Obligation is one of the Obligations
described in the Resolution.

By:

Director of Finance/Treasurer, as Fiscal Agent

Exhibit A — Page 4



Schedule 1
RECORD OF DRAWS OF PRINCIPAL AND PRINCIPAL REPAYMENTS

$3,852,100
Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District, Wisconsin
General Obligation Sewerage System Promissory Notes, Series 2017B

Amount of Amount of Principal Outstanding
Principal Drawn Draw Date Principal Repaid After Repayment

$ $

Exhibit A — Page 5



SCHEDULE 2

PRINCIPAL REPAYMENT SCHEDULE

Date

May 1, 2018
May 1, 2019
May 1, 2020
May 1, 2021
May 1, 2022
May 1, 2023
May 1, 2024
May 1, 2025
May 1, 2026
May 1, 2027
May 1, 2028
May 1, 2029
May 1, 2030
May 1, 2031
May 1, 2032
May 1, 2033
May 1, 2034
May 1, 2035
May 1, 2036
May 1, 2037

Principal Amount

$ 162,363.94
165,221.54
168,129.44
171,088.52
174,099.68
177,163.83
180,281.92
183,454.88
186,683.69
189,969.32
193,312.78
196,715.08
200,177.27
203,700.39
207,285.52
210,933.74
214,646.17
218,423.95
222,268.21
226,180.13

Exhibit A — Page 6



ASSIGNMENT

For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto

PLEASE INSERT SOCIAL SECURITY OR

OTHER IDENTIFYING NUMBER OF ASSIGNEE

(Please Print or Type Name and Address of Assignee)

the within-mentioned Obligation and all rights thereunder and does hereby irrevocably constitute

and appoint

attorney-in-fact, to transfer the

same on the books of the registry in the office of the Fiscal Agent, with full power of substitution

in the premises.

Dated:

Signature Guaranteed

NOTICE: Signatures must be guaranteed by an
“eligible guarantor institution” meeting the
requirements of the Fiscal Agent. Those
requirements include membership or
participation in the Securities Transfer
Association Medallion Program (“STAMP”) or
such other “signature guarantee program” as
may be determined by the Fiscal Agent in
addition to, or in substitution for, STAmP, all in
accordance with the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.

Note: The signature to this assignment must
correspond with the name as written on the
face of the within Obligation in every
particular, without any alteration or change.
When assignment is made by a guardian,
trustee, executor or administrator, an officer
of a corporation, or anyone in a representative
capacity, proof of the person’s authority to
act must accompany this Obligation.

Exhibit A — Page 7



EXHIBIT B

NOTICE TO THE ELECTORS
RESIDING IN THE
MILWAUKEE METROPOLITAN SEWERAGE DISTRICT, WISCONSIN
RELATING TO NOTE SALE

On November 27, 2017, pursuant to Section 67.12 (12) of the Wisconsin Statutes,
a resolution was offered, read, approved, and adopted whereby the Milwaukee Metropolitan
Sewerage District, Wisconsin authorized the borrowing of money and the execution and delivery
of a contract to sell general obligation sewerage system promissory notes in the principal amount
of up to $3,852,100. It is anticipated that the closing of this note financing will be held on or
about December 13, 2017. A copy of all proceedings had to date with respect to the
authorization and sale of said notes is on file and may be examined in the office of the
Commission Secretary of the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District, at 260 West Seeboth
Street, Milwaukee, Wisconsin between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. on weekdays.

This notice is given pursuant to Section 893.77 of the Wisconsin Statutes, which
provides that an action or proceeding to contest the validity of such financing, for other than
constitutional reasons, shall be commenced within 30 days after the date of publication of this
notice.

Publication Date: , 2017 /s/ Anna Kettlewell
Commission Secretary




A Resolution Authorizing and Providing for the Sale and Issuance of up to
$5,686,226 General Obligation Sewerage System Promissory Notes, Series 2017C,
Levying Taxes for the Payment Thereof,
and All Related Details

RECITALS

The Metropolitan Sewerage District Commission (the “Governing Body”) of the
Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District, Wisconsin (the “Issuer”) makes the following
findings and determinations:

1. Certain improvements to the Issuer’s sewerage system (the “System”) are
necessary to meet the needs of the communities served by the System and the residents thereof,
consisting of the replacement of main recycle screw conveyors #3 and #4, west recycle screw
conveyors #1 and #2, recycle/product bin bucket discharge transfer screw conveyors #1 and #2,
and recycle bin bucket elevators #1 and #2 in connection with Phase 3 of the Milorganite Facility
Improvements Project (collectively, the “Project”).

2. The Project has been assigned Clean Water Fund Program Project No.
3234-01 by the State of Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (the “Department of
Natural Resources”), and as defined in Department of Natural Resources approval letter for the
Plans and Specifications of the Project, or portions thereof, issued under Section 281.41 of the
Wisconsin Statutes; and assigned Number S-2016-0305 dated June 22, 2016.

3. The Governing Body wishes to borrow the funds needed for the Project by
selling and issuing general obligation sewerage system promissory notes pursuant to the
provisions of Section 67.12 (12) of the Wisconsin Statutes.

4. The Issuer has taken all actions required by law and has the power to sell
and issue the $5,686,226 Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District, Wisconsin General
Obligation Sewerage System Promissory Notes, Series 2017C authorized by this resolution.

RESOLUTIONS

The Governing Body resolves as follows:
Section 1. Definitions.

In this resolution, the following terms have the meanings given in this section,
unless the context requires another meaning.

“Commission Officers” means the Chairperson and the Secretary of the
Governing Body of the Issuer. These are the officers required by law to execute general
obligations on the Issuer’s behalf.



“Continuing Disclosure Agreement” means the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement, dated as of the Original Issue Date, to be executed by the Issuer and delivered on the
closing date for the Obligations.

“CWFP” means the State of Wisconsin Clean Water Fund Program.

“Debt Service Fund” means the fund created by the Issuer pursuant to
Section 67.11 of the Wisconsin Statutes to provide for the payment of debt service on its general
obligations.

“Debt Service Fund Account” has the meaning given in Section 13.

“Director of Finance/Treasurer” means the Issuer’s Director of
Finance/Treasurer.

“Financial Assistance Agreement” means the Financial Assistance Agreement,
dated as of the Original Issue Date, by and between the Issuer and the State of Wisconsin by the
Department of Natural Resources and the Department of Administration, pursuant to which the
Obligations are to be issued and sold to the State, in substantially the form accompanying this
resolution and incorporated herein by reference.

“Financial Officer” means the Director of Finance/Treasurer.

“Fiscal Agent” means the Director of Finance/Treasurer or any successor fiscal
agent appointed by the Issuer to act as authentication agent, paying agent, and registrar for the
Obligations pursuant to Section 67.10 (2) of the Wisconsin Statutes.

“Governing Body” means the Issuer’s Metropolitan Sewerage District
Commission.

“Issuer” means the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District, Wisconsin.

“Obligations” means the $5,686,226 Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District,
Wisconsin General Obligation Sewerage System Promissory Notes, Series 2017C, which will be
issued pursuant to this resolution.

“Original Issue Date” means December 13, 2017.

“Project” has the meaning given in the recitals to this resolution.

“Purchase Price” means up to $5,686,226.

“Record Date” means the 15th day (whether or not a business day) of the
calendar month just before each regularly scheduled interest payment date for the Obligations.

“Recording Officer” means the Secretary of the Issuer’s Governing Body.

“Register” means the register maintained by the Fiscal Agent at its principal
office, in which the Fiscal Agent records:



Q) The name and address of the owner of each Obligation.

(i) All transfers of each Obligation.

“State” means the State of Wisconsin Department of Administration.
Section 2. Exhibits.

The attached exhibits are also a part of this resolution as though they were fully
written out in this resolution:

() Exhibit A— Form of Obligation.
(i) Exhibit B — Notice to Electors of Sale.

Section 3. Purposes of Borrowing; Issuance of Obligations.

The Governing Body authorizes the Obligations and orders that they be prepared,
executed, and issued. The Obligations will be fully registered, negotiable, general obligation
sewerage system promissory notes of the Issuer in the principal amount of up to $5,686,226. The
Obligations will be issued pursuant to the provisions of the Financial Assistance Agreement and
Section 67.12 (12) of the Wisconsin Statutes to pay the costs of the Project and to pay certain
expenses of issuing the Obligations (including, but not limited to, printing costs and fees for
financial consultants, bond counsel, rating agencies, insurance, and registration, as applicable).

Section 4. Terms of Obligations.

The Obligations will be named “Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District,
Wisconsin General Obligation Sewerage System Promissory Notes, Series 2017C.” The
Obligations will be dated the Original Issue Date, even if they are actually issued or executed on
another date. Each Obligation will also be dated the date to which it is authenticated by the
Fiscal Agent. That date is its registration date.

The face amount of each Obligation will be in denominations of $.01 or any
multiple of $.01 up to the principal amount authorized for that maturity.

The Obligations will bear interest from the Original Issue Date, or from the date
principal evidenced by the Obligations was drawn by the Issuer (as described below), or from the
most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid. Interest will be due and
payable on each May 1 and November 1 until the principal of the Obligations has been paid,
beginning on May 1, 2018. Interest on each Obligation will be (i) computed on the basis of a
360-day year of twelve 30-day months and (ii) payable to the person or entity in whose name the
Obligation is registered on the Register at the end of the day on the applicable Record Date. The
Obligations will be numbered consecutively as may be required to comply with any applicable
rules or customs or as determined by the Commission Officers executing the Obligations. The
Obligations will mature on May 1, 2037 and will bear interest at the rate of 1.76%.

The principal evidenced by the Obligations may be drawn upon by the Issuer in
accordance with the Financial Assistance Agreement. The principal of the Obligations so drawn

-3-



is payable in annual installments on each May 1, beginning on May 1, 2018, in the amounts set
forth in the repayment schedule attached as Exhibit B to the Financial Assistance Agreement and
in the attached Schedule 2 to Exhibit A. The repayment schedule has been calculated by the
State assuming the full principal amount of the Obligations has been drawn by the Issuer on the
Original Issue Date. The repayment schedule will be adjusted by the State from time to time
based on the actual principal amounts drawn by the Issuer. The principal amounts so drawn shall
be repaid in an amount equal to an amount which when amortized over the remaining term of the
Obligations plus current payments of interest (but only on amounts drawn) at the interest rate set
forth above shall result in equal annual payments of the total of principal of and interest due on
the Obligations. The State shall record such draws of principal and principal repayments in the
format shown on the attached Schedule 1 to Exhibit A.

The principal of and interest on the Obligations will be payable in lawful money
of the United States of America.

Section 5. Fiscal Agent.

The Issuer appoints the Fiscal Agent to act as authentication agent, paying agent,
and registrar for the Obligations. Among other things, the Fiscal Agent must maintain the
Register.

Section 6. Redemption.

The Obligations are subject to optional redemption prior to maturity only as
provided in the Financial Assistance Agreement and upon the written consent of the CWFP.

Section 7. Manner of Payment/Transfers/Redemption Notices.

Payment. On each principal payment date (whether at maturity, installment
payment date, or redemption date) and on each interest payment date, the Fiscal Agent will pay
the principal of, and interest on, each Obligation by electronic funds transfer or by check mailed
to the person or entity in whose name the Obligation is registered on the Register at the end of
the day on the applicable Record Date.

Transfers. Each Obligation is transferable, only upon the Register, for a like
aggregate principal amount of the same maturity and interest rate in denominations of $.01. A
transfer may be requested by the registered owner in person or by a person with a written power
of attorney. The Obligation must be surrendered to the Fiscal Agent, together with a written
instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Fiscal Agent signed by the registered owner or by the
person with the written power of attorney. The Issuer will issue one or more new fully registered
Obligations in the same aggregate principal amount to the transferee or transferees, as applicable,
in exchange for the surrendered Obligations and upon the payment of a charge sufficient to
reimburse the Issuer or the Fiscal Agent for any tax, fee, or other governmental charge required
to be paid with respect to such registration.

The Fiscal Agent will not be required to make any transfer of the Obligations

(i) during the 15 calendar days before the date of any proposed redemption of the Obligations, or
(i) with respect to any particular Obligation, after the Obligation has been called for redemption.

-4 -



Partial Redemptions. If less than all of the Obligations have been called for
redemption, then the State will adjust the principal repayment schedule to reflect such partial
redemption.

Notice of Redemption. So long as the CWFP is the registered owner of the
Obligations, no redemption notice is required to be sent in the event of any redemption of the
Obligations.

Accrual of Interest. If payment of an Obligation called for redemption has been
made or provided for, then interest on the Obligation stops accruing on the stated redemption
date.

Register. The Issuer and the Fiscal Agent may treat the entity or person in whose
name any Obligation is registered on the Register as the absolute owner of the Obligation for all
purposes whatsoever under this resolution.

Section 8. Form of Obligations.

The Obligations shall be in substantially the form shown in Exhibit A.
Omissions, insertions, or variations are permitted if they are deemed necessary or desirable and
are consistent with this resolution or any supplemental resolution.

Section 9. Execution of Obligations.

The Obligations shall be signed by the persons who are the Commission Officers
on the Original Issue Date. The Obligations shall be sealed with the Issuer’s corporate seal (or a
facsimile), if the Issuer has one, and they shall also be authenticated by the manual signature of
the Fiscal Agent.

The Obligations will be valid and binding even if before they are delivered any
person whose signature appears on the Obligations is no longer living or is no longer the person
authorized to sign the Obligations. In that event, the Obligations will have the same effect as if
the person were living or were still the person authorized to sign the Obligations.

A facsimile signature may be used as long as at least one signature of a
Commission Officer is a manual signature or the Fiscal Agent’s certificate of authentication has
a manual signature. If a facsimile signature is used, then it will be treated as the officer’s own
signature.

Section 10. Continuing Disclosure.

The appropriate officers of the Issuer are directed to sign the Continuing
Disclosure Agreement, and the Issuer agrees to comply with all of its terms. The Issuer shall
amend the Continuing Disclosure Agreement from time to time as the CWFP may require and to
conform with any changes in rules or regulations by the Securities and Exchange Commission
with respect to continuing disclosure.



Section 11.  Sale of Obligations; Financial Assistance Agreement.

The Issuer awards the sale of the Obligations to the CWFP at the Purchase Price,
plus any accrued interest from the Original Issue Date to the date of delivery of the Obligations.
The Issuer approves and accepts the Financial Assistance Agreement presented by the CWFP to
purchase the Obligations and agrees to perform all obligations of the Issuer set forth therein. The
Commission Officers are directed to (i) sign the Financial Assistance Agreement in the Issuer’s
name and (ii) take any additional actions needed to complete the sale of the Obligations,
including arranging for a closing of the sale. The Purchase Price for the Obligations shall be
paid upon request therefor as provided in the Financial Assistance Agreement.

The Commission Officers are directed to sign the Obligations and to arrange for
delivery of the Obligations to the CWFP upon payment by the CWFP of the Purchase Price, plus
any accrued interest, as required by this resolution.

Unless waived by the CWFP, the sale of the Obligations is conditioned upon the
Issuer furnishing the following items to the CWFP:

() The Obligations, together with the written, unqualified approving opinions
of the law firms of MWH Law Group LLP and Foley & Lardner LLP, co-
bond counsel, evidencing the legality of the Obligations and that interest
on the Obligations will be excluded from gross income for federal income
tax purposes.

(i) Atranscript of the proceedings relating to the issuance of the Obligations.

(iii) A certificate showing that no litigation has been threatened or is pending
that would affect the legality of the Obligations or the right of the Issuer to
issue them at the time of their delivery.

Section 12. General Obligation Pledge; Tax Levy.

For the prompt payment of the principal of and interest on the Obligations, the
Issuer irrevocably pledges its full faith and credit. The Issuer hereby levies upon all taxable
property in its territory a direct, annual, and irrepealable tax in an amount sufficient to pay, and
for the express purpose of paying, the interest on the Obligations as it falls due and also to pay
and discharge the principal of the Obligations on the principal installment payment dates and at
maturity.

This tax shall be carried from year to year into the Issuer’s tax roll. It shall be
collected in addition to all other taxes and in the same manner and at the same time as all other
taxes. The amount of this tax that is carried into the Issuer’s tax roll may be reduced in any year
by the amount of any surplus money in the Debt Service Fund Account available to pay debt
service on the Obligations for such year. Assuming the entire principal amount of the
Obligations is drawn, the tax for each year the levy is made will be in the following amounts:



Debt Service Debt Service

Amount Due in Amount Due in

Levy Year Following Year Levy Year Following Year
2017 $325,964.11 2027 $337,237.81
2018 337,602.71 2028 337,193.61
2019 337,564.93 2029 337,148.63
2020 337,526.50 2030 337,102.87
2021 337,487.39 2031 337,056.31
2022 337,447.59 2032 337,008.92
2023 337,407.08 2033 336,960.69
2024 337,365.85 2034 336,911.61
2025 337,323.91 2035 336,861.68
2026 337,281.23 2036 336,810.86

Section 13. Debt Service Fund Account.

The Issuer shall create a separate account within the Debt Service Fund solely for
the Obligations (the “Debt Service Fund Account”), which shall be maintained and
administered as provided in Section 67.11 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The Director of
Finance/Treasurer is directed to keep the proceeds of the taxes levied under this resolution, when
they are collected, in the Debt Service Fund Account. Any accrued interest received at the time
of delivery of the Obligations and the premium, if any, paid to the Issuer by the CWFP in excess
of the stated principal amount of the Obligations must be deposited into the Debt Service Fund
Account and used to pay interest on the Obligations. If the money in the Debt Service Fund
Account is insufficient to make a payment of principal of or interest on the Obligations on a date
on which such a payment is due, then the Issuer will promptly provide the necessary funds to
make the payment from other available sources. Money in the Debt Service Fund Account may
be temporarily invested as provided in Section 66.0603 (1m) of the Wisconsin Statutes.

Section 14. Borrowed Money Fund.

In accordance with Section 67.10(3) of the Wisconsin Statutes, the sale proceeds
of the Obligations (not including any accrued interest or premium received) shall be deposited
and kept by the Director of Finance/Treasurer in a separate fund. The fund shall be designated
with both the name of the Obligations and the name Borrowed Money Fund (herein referred to as
the “Borrowed Money Fund”). Money in the Borrowed Money Fund, including any earnings,
shall be (i) used to pay the costs of the Project, the costs of issuing the Obligations, and the costs
of investing amounts in the Borrowed Money Fund, or (ii) transferred to the Debt Service Fund
Account as provided by law. Money in the Borrowed Money Fund may be temporarily invested
as provided in Section 66.0603 (1m) of the Wisconsin Statutes; provided, however, that pursuant
to the terms of the Financial Assistance Agreement, money in the Borrowed Money Fund must

-7-



be disbursed within three business days after the Original Issue Date, or the date of receipt by the
Issuer of any draws of principal on the Obligations, and must not be invested in an interest
bearing account.

Section 15.  Publication of Notice.

The Recording Officer is directed to publish notice that the Issuer has agreed to
sell the Obligations. The notice shall be published in the Issuer’s official newspaper as a class 1
notice under Chapter 985 of the Wisconsin Statutes promptly after the execution of the Financial
Assistant Agreement. The notice shall be in substantially the form shown in Exhibit B. The
Recording Officer shall obtain proof, in affidavit form, of the publication, and shall compare the
notice as published with the attached form to make sure that no mistake was made in publication.

Section 16.  Authorization of Officers.

The appropriate officers of the Issuer are directed to prepare and furnish the
following items to the CWFP and the attorneys approving the legality of the Obligations:

Q) Certified copies of proceedings and records of the Issuer relating to the
Obligations and to the financial condition and affairs of the Issuer.

(i) Other affidavits, certificates, and information that may be required to show
the facts about the legality of the Obligations, as such facts appear on the
books and records under the officer’s custody or control or as are
otherwise known to the officer.

All certified copies, affidavits, certificates, and information furnished for such purpose will be
representations of the Issuer as to the facts they present.

Section 17. Tax Law Covenants.

The Issuer covenants that it will comply with all requirements of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder, that
must be satisfied so that interest on the Obligations will be excluded from gross income for
federal income tax purposes.

Section 18. Amendments.

This resolution may (i) be amended from time to time without the written consent
of the CWFP, to cure any ambiguity, administrative conflicts, formal defect, or omission or
procedural inconsistency of this resolution, and (ii) be amended from time to time with the
written consent of the CWFP, to modify any terms of the Obligations deemed necessary or
advisable by the Issuer or the CWFP.

In the event the CWFP sells all or a portion of the Obligations, written consent
referred to in (ii) above shall be required by the owners of not less than two-thirds of the
principal amount then outstanding of the Obligations.



Section 19.  Further Authorization.

The Issuer authorizes its officers, attorneys, and other agents or employees to do
all acts required of them to carry out the purposes of this resolution.

Section 20. Conflict with Prior Acts.

In case any part of a prior action of the Governing Body conflicts with this
resolution, that part of the prior action is hereby rescinded.

Section 21.  Severability of Invalid Provisions.

If a court holds any provision of this resolution to be illegal or invalid, then the
illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provision of this resolution.

Section 22. Resolution Effective upon Adoption and Approval.

This resolution takes effect upon its adoption and approval in the manner
provided by law.

[Signature Page Follows]



Adopted: November 27, 2017.

John Hermes
Commission Chairperson

Anna Kettlewell
Commission Secretary

[Signature Page to Series 2017C Resolution]



EXHIBIT A

FORM OF OBLIGATION

STATE OF WISCONSIN
MILWAUKEE METROPOLITAN SEWERAGE DISTRICT

No. R-1 Registered
$5,686,226

GENERAL OBLIGATION SEWERAGE SYSTEM PROMISSORY NOTE,

SERIES 2017C
Interest Maturity Original
Rate Date Issue Date CusIP
1.76% May 1, 2037 December 13, 2017 None
REGISTERED OWNER: STATE OF WISCONSIN CLEAN WATER FUND PROGRAM
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: FIVE MILLION SiX HUNDRED EIGHTY-SIX THOUSAND

Two HUNDRED TWENTY-SIX DOLLARS

THE MILWAUKEE METROPOLITAN SEWERAGE DISTRICT, WISCONSIN (herein called
the “Issuer”), hereby acknowledges itself to owe and for value received promises to pay the
Principal Amount to the Registered Owner on the Maturity Date or earlier installment payment
date (as hereinafter described), and interest on the Principal Amount from the Original Issue
Date at the annual rate of the Interest Rate. The actual interest amount due is based on the
amount of principal drawn, from the dates so drawn (as hereinafter described), or from the most
recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid. Interest is due and payable on each
May 1 and November 1 until the Principal Amount has been paid, beginning on May 1, 2018.
Interest is computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.

This Obligation is one of a duly authorized issue of notes (the “Obligations”) of
the Issuer of an aggregate principal amount of $5,686,226, all of like tenor, except as to
denomination, issued by the Issuer pursuant to the provisions of Section 67.12 (12) of the
Wisconsin Statutes, and is authorized by the resolution duly adopted by the governing body of
the Issuer on November 27, 2017, entitled: “A Resolution Authorizing and Providing for the
Sale and Issuance of up to $5,686,226 General Obligation Sewerage System Promissory Notes,
Series 2017C, Levying Taxes for the Payment Thereof, and All Related Details” (the
“Resolution”). The Obligations are issuable only in the form of fully registered notes.

The Principal Amount evidenced by this Obligation may be drawn upon by the
Issuer in accordance with the Financial Assistance Agreement (as defined in the Resolution).

Exhibit A — Page 1



The Principal Amount so drawn shall be repaid in annual installments on each May 1, beginning
on May 1, 2018, in the amounts set forth in the repayment schedule attached as Exhibit B to the
Financial Assistance Agreement and in the attached Schedule 2. The repayment schedule has
been calculated by the State of Wisconsin Department of Administration (the “State”) assuming
the full Principal Amount of the Obligations has been drawn by the Issuer on the Original Issue
Date. The repayment schedule will be adjusted by the State from time to time based on the
actual Principal Amounts drawn by the Issuer. The Principal Amounts so drawn shall be repaid
in an amount equal to an amount which when amortized over the remaining term of this
Obligation plus current payments of interest (but only on amounts drawn hereunder) at the
Interest Rate shall result in equal annual payments of the total of principal of and interest on the
Obligations. The State shall record draws of principal and principal repayments in the format
shown on the attached Schedule 1.

On each principal payment date (whether at maturity or earlier installment
payment or redemption date) and on each interest payment date, the Director of
Finance/Treasurer of the Issuer (who will act as authentication agent, paying agent, and registrar
for the Obligations), or any successor fiscal agent appointed by the Issuer to act as authentication
agent, paying agent, and registrar for the Obligations under Section 67.10 (2) of the Wisconsin
Statutes (hereinafter called the “Fiscal Agent”), will pay the principal of, and interest on, this
Obligation by electronic funds transfer or by check mailed to the person or entity in whose name
this Obligation is registered on the register (hereinafter called the “Register””) maintained by the
Fiscal Agent at the end of the 15" day (whether or not a business day) of the calendar month just
before a regularly scheduled interest payment date for the Obligations (the “Record Date”).

The principal of and interest on this Obligation is payable in lawful money of the
United States of America. For the prompt payment of the principal of and interest on this
Obligation, the Issuer has irrevocably pledged its full faith and credit. The Issuer has levied
upon all taxable property in its territory a direct, annual, and irrepealable tax sufficient in amount
to pay, and for the express purpose of paying, the interest on this Obligation as it falls due and
the principal of this Obligation on the Maturity Date or earlier installment payment date.

The Obligations are subject to optional redemption prior to maturity only as
provided in the Financial Assistance Agreement and upon the written consent of the Registered
Owner.

Transfers. Each Obligation is transferable, only upon the Register, for a like
aggregate principal amount of the same maturity and interest rate in
denominations of $.01. A transfer may be requested by the registered owner in
person or by a person with a written power of attorney. The Obligation shall be
surrendered to the Fiscal Agent, together with a written instrument of transfer
satisfactory to the Fiscal Agent signed by the registered owner or by the person
with the written power of attorney. The Issuer will issue one or more new fully
registered Obligations, in the same aggregate principal amount to the transferee or
transferees, as applicable, in exchange for the surrendered Obligations and upon
the payment of a charge sufficient to reimburse the Issuer or the Fiscal Agent for
any tax, fee, or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such
registration.

Exhibit A — Page 2



The Fiscal Agent will not be required to make any transfer of the Obligations

(i) during the 15 calendar days before the date of any proposed redemption of the
Obligations, or (ii) with respect to any particular Obligation, after such Obligation
has been called for redemption.

Partial Redemptions. If less than all of the Obligations have been called for
redemption, then the State will adjust the principal repayment schedule to reflect
such partial redemption.

Notice of Redemption. So long as the State of Wisconsin Clean Water Fund
Program is the registered owner of the Obligations, no redemption notice is
required to be sent in the event of any redemption of the Obligations.

Accrual of Interest. If payment of an Obligation called for redemption has been
made or provided for, then interest on the Obligation stops accruing on the stated
redemption date.

Register. The Issuer and the Fiscal Agent may treat the entity or person in whose
name this Obligation is registered on the Register as the absolute owner of this
Obligation for all purposes.

The Issuer certifies, recites, and declares that all acts, conditions, and procedures
required by law to exist, to have happened, and to be performed, leading up to and in the issuing
of this Obligation and of the issue of which it is a part, do exist, have happened, and have been
performed in regular and due form, time, and manner as required by law; that the indebtedness of
the Issuer, including this Obligation and the issue of which it is a part, does not exceed any
limitation, general or special, imposed by law; and that a valid, direct, annual and irrepealable
tax has been levied by the Issuer sufficient to pay the interest on this Obligation when it falls due
and also to pay and discharge the principal of this Obligation at maturity or earlier installment
payment date.

Exhibit A — Page 3



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer, by its governing body, has caused this
Obligation to be executed in its name and on its behalf by the manual or facsimile signatures of
its Commission Chairperson and Commission Secretary and to be sealed with its corporate seal
(or a facsimile thereof), if any, all as of the date specified above.

MILWAUKEE METROPOLITAN SEWERAGE DISTRICT,
WISCONSIN

By:

John Hermes
Commission Chairperson
[SEAL]

And:
Anna Kettlewell
Commission Secretary

Certificate of Authentication

Dated: December 13, 2017

This Obligation is one of the Obligations
described in the Resolution.

By:

Director of Finance/Treasurer, as Fiscal Agent

Exhibit A — Page 4



SCHEDULE 1

RECORD OF DRAWS OF PRINCIPAL AND PRINCIPAL REPAYMENTS

$5,686,226
Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District, Wisconsin
General Obligation Sewerage System Promissory Notes, Series 2017C

Amount of Amount of Principal Outstanding
Principal Drawn Draw Date Principal Repaid After Repayment

$ $

Exhibit A — Page 5



SCHEDULE 2

PRINCIPAL REPAYMENT SCHEDULE

Date

May 1, 2018
May 1, 2019
May 1, 2020
May 1, 2021
May 1, 2022
May 1, 2023
May 1, 2024
May 1, 2025
May 1, 2026
May 1, 2027
May 1, 2028
May 1, 2029
May 1, 2030
May 1, 2031
May 1, 2032
May 1, 2033
May 1, 2034
May 1, 2035
May 1, 2036
May 1, 2037

Principal Amount

$239,671.36
243,889.58
248,182.03
252,550.04
256,994.92
261,518.03
266,120.75
270,804.47
275,570.63
280,420.67
285,356.08
290,378.34
295,489.00
300,689.61
305,981.75
311,367.03
316,847.09
322,423.59
328,098.25
333,872.78

Exhibit A — Page 6



ASSIGNMENT

For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto

PLEASE INSERT SOCIAL SECURITY OR

OTHER IDENTIFYING NUMBER OF ASSIGNEE

(Please Print or Type Name and Address of Assignee)

the within-mentioned Obligation and all rights thereunder and does hereby irrevocably constitute

and appoint

attorney-in-fact, to transfer the

same on the books of the registry in the office of the Fiscal Agent, with full power of substitution

in the premises.

Dated:

Signature Guaranteed

NOTICE: Signatures must be guaranteed by an
“eligible guarantor institution” meeting the
requirements of the Fiscal Agent. Those
requirements include membership or
participation in the Securities Transfer
Association Medallion Program (“STAMP”) or
such other “signature guarantee program” as
may be determined by the Fiscal Agent in
addition to, or in substitution for, STAmP, all in
accordance with the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.

Note: The signature to this assignment must
correspond with the name as written on the
face of the within Obligation in every
particular, without any alteration or change.
When assignment is made by a guardian,
trustee, executor or administrator, an officer
of a corporation, or anyone in a representative
capacity, proof of the person’s authority to
act must accompany this Obligation.

Exhibit A — Page 7



EXHIBIT B

NOTICE TO THE ELECTORS
RESIDING IN THE
MILWAUKEE METROPOLITAN SEWERAGE DISTRICT, WISCONSIN
RELATING TO NOTE SALE

On November 27, 2017, pursuant to Section 67.12 (12) of the Wisconsin Statutes,
a resolution was offered, read, approved, and adopted whereby the Milwaukee Metropolitan
Sewerage District, Wisconsin authorized the borrowing of money and the execution and delivery
of a contract to sell general obligation sewerage system promissory notes in the principal amount
of up to $5,686,226. It is anticipated that the closing of this note financing will be held on or
about December 13, 2017. A copy of all proceedings had to date with respect to the
authorization and sale of said notes is on file and may be examined in the office of the
Commission Secretary of the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District, at 260 West Seeboth
Street, Milwaukee, Wisconsin between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. on weekdays.

This notice is given pursuant to Section 893.77 of the Wisconsin Statutes, which
provides that an action or proceeding to contest the validity of such financing, for other than
constitutional reasons, shall be commenced within 30 days after the date of publication of this
notice.

Publication Date: , 2017 /s/ Anna Kettlewell
Commission Secretary




Ak

PARTNERS FOR A CLEANER ENVIRONMENT ltem 8

COMMISSION FILE NO: 17-114-11 DATE INTRODUCED:  November 13, 2017

INTRODUCED BY: Executive Director (Signature on File in the Office of the Commission)

REFERRED BY COMMISSION CHAIRPERSON TO: Policy, Finance, and Personnel Committee

RELATING TO:  Authorizing the Executive Director to Extend the Contracts for Prescription
Drug and Supplemental Medical Coverage for Post Medicare Retirees

SUMMARY:

The Commission is requested to authorize the Executive Director to extend contracts with
Express Scripts for prescription coverage and with United American Insurance to provide
supplemental medical coverage for Medicare-eligible retirees from January 1, 2018, through
December 31, 2018.

The District currently carries post-65 (Medicare) retiree medical coverage with United American
and prescription coverage with Express Scripts. The renewal for retiree medical coverage with
United American increased 3.2% from $188.00 to $194.00 per retiree per month (PRPM). In
January 2015, the District changed carriers for retiree medical from Monumental Life to United
American, decreasing costs from $224.87 PRPM on the renewal to $177.00 PRPM. This was
a savings to the District of approximately $320,000. In addition to the savings, United American
had a five-year history of very stable, modest renewals (all between 2- 4%). The 3.2% increase
for 2018 is within this range and below average medical inflation.

The renewal for the retiree prescription program increased from $221.65 to $232.29 PRPM, or
4.8% for 2018. Increased pharmacy cost trend (or inflation), plan utilization, and the increase in
specialty drug utilization lead to the increase in pharmacy. The 4.8% retiree prescription renewal
IS equivalent to the increase received last year and what the industry has seen on other retiree
prescription programs. The District and many retirees have also expressed extreme satisfaction
in the customer service provided by the two vendors.

ATTACHMENTS: BACKGROUND [X] KEY ISSUES [ ] RESOLUTION [X
FISCAL NOTE[X] S/W/MBE[ ] OTHER[ ]

PFP_ExtendContractsRetirees_legislative_file.docx
10-20-17

COMMITTEE ACTION: DATE:

COMMISSION ACTION: DATE:




SUMMARY (Cont’d)

Authorizing the Executive Director to Extend the Contracts for Prescription Drug and
Supplemental Medical Coverage for Post Medicare Retirees

The current contracts with United American and Express Scripts are authorized through
December 31, 2017. The table below summarizes PRPM rate changes from 2017 to
2018 and the percentage rate increase/decrease anticipated with the recommended

carrier:
Rates (PRPM)
2017 2018 %
Increase/Decrease
Express Scripts (Rx) $221.65 | $232.29 | 4.8%
United American (proposed Medical
Supplement) $188.00 | $194.00 | 3.2%




BACKGROUND

Authorizing the Executive Director to Extend the Contracts for Prescription Drug and
Supplemental Medical Coverage for Post Medicare Retirees

In August 2003, health insurance coverage for Medicare-eligible retirees and their
spouses over the age of 65 was changed to an insured Medicare supplemental insurance
plan. This transition to the insured Medicare supplemental plan was, in part, done
because the District was having difficulty obtaining claims administration and stop loss
quotes for self-insured health insurance due to the high retiree population. Since this is
an insured plan, it is easier to budget the health plan expenditures for the retiree
population. This plan has provided efficiencies in claims administration for the retiree
population. With the retiree’s concurrence, the claims administrator can obtain the
Medicare payment on claims for retirees electronically, which expedites the claims
processing time.

The recommendation is to keep the retiree medical coverage with United American and
prescription coverage with Express Scripts. United American and Express Scripts are
two highly regarded carriers, and the increases at renewal have been reasonable over
the last couple of years, staying within or slightly below medical trend.



RESOLUTION

Authorizing the Executive Director to Extend the Contracts for Prescription Drug and
Supplemental Medical Coverage for Post Medicare Retirees

RESOLVED, by the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage Commission, that the Executive
Director is authorized to extend the contracts with Express Scripts for prescription
coverage and with United American Insurance to provide supplemental medical coverage
for Medicare-eligible retirees from January 1, 2018, through December 31, 2018.



PARTNERS FOR A CLEANER ENVIRONMENT

RELATING TO:

O&M Budget Fiscal Note

Authorizing the Executive Director to Extend the Contracts for Prescription Drug and Supplemental Medical Coverage for Post Medicare

Retirees

Cost Center:
Fringe Benefits

Line Item:

582 - Group Health Insurance - Retirees

Line ltem Impact

2018 Original Budget

Carryovers or Transfers

Adjusted Budget

Estimated Annual Expenditure including Request
Anticipated Year End Balance

Actual Year to Date Expenditures Through 10/19

For unfavorable Year End Balance, identify funding source:

$5,969,323
$0

$5,969,323

$5,969,323
$0
N/A

|:|Absorbed within the Division
|:|Other Division

|:|Unallocated Reserve

Requested Anticipated
Anticipated Expenditure Timing Expenditures Savings/Revenues Net Fiscal Impact
Current Year (2018) $241,162 $0 $241,162
Subsequent $0 $0 $0
Total Cost $241,162 $0 $241,162

Comments: The requested expenditures reflect the current number of subscribers; actual costs in 2018 may change contingent on the

actual post-Medicare health plan number of subscribers.

The cost estimates include expenditures for retired United Water Services and Veolia Water Milwaukee employees. The District will
receive reimbursements for these expenditures. However, due to the unknown nature of retirements and claim costs, these
reimbursements are not quantified as anticipated savings/revenues.

Budget Review by:

Christine Durkin

Date

10/19/2017




Ak

PARTNERS FOR A CLEANER ENVIRONMENT ltem 9

COMMISSION FILE NO: 17-115-11 DATE INTRODUCED:  November 13, 2017

INTRODUCED BY: Executive Director (Signature on File in the Office of the Commission)

REFERRED BY COMMISSION CHAIRPERSON TO: Policy, Finance, and Personnel Committee

RELATING TO:  Authorizing the Executive Director to Enter into a Contract for Pharmacy
Benefit Management Services with Optum Rx Effective January 1, 2018

SUMMARY:

The Commission is requested to authorize the Executive Director to enter into a three-year
contract beginning January 1, 2018, with Optum Rx (formerly Catamaran and Restat) to provide
pharmacy benefit management (PBM) services for District employees and pre-Medicare retirees
for the period of January 1, 2018, through December 31, 2020.

The District’'s current contract with Optum Rx for PBM services will expire on December 31,
2017. The District’'s benefit consultant marketed the PBM services to four other firms and
requested Optum Rx to come forward with their best pricing. The four other pharmacy benefit
managers that submitted quotes were Express Scripts, Medimpact, WellDyne, and Serve You.
The best pricing for the alternate carriers came from Express Scripts, as their discounts and
dispensing fees were better than the other three. Through their recent mergers and
restructuring, Optum Rx negotiated more favorable pricing with the pharmaceutical companies
that improves pricing discounts from the prior agreement. Average wholesale price (AWP)
discount guarantees have improved for both retail and brand drugs under the regional and non-
regional networks. Mail service guaranteed discounts are also better in the new agreement.
These enhanced discounts and overall pricing are expected to generate approximately
$100,000 in prescription savings for MMSD each year over the three-year agreement.

ATTACHMENTS: BACKGROUND [X] KEY ISSUES [ ] RESOLUTION [X
FISCAL NOTE[X] S/W/MBE[ ] OTHER[ ]

PFP_PharmBenefit_legislative_file.docx
10-25-17

COMMITTEE ACTION: DATE:

COMMISSION ACTION: DATE:




BACKGROUND

Authorizing the Executive Director to Enter into a Contract for Pharmacy Benefit
Management Services with Optum Rx Effective January 1, 2018

Under the current and renewal Optum Rx plan, there is a two-tier network, which allows
employees to enter a broad prescription network with a $10/25/40 copay structure or the
narrower regional plan (Align Network) with a $5/20/35 copay. The purpose of adding the
narrower regional network (implemented in 2012) was to include a lower cost pharmacy
alternative for employees choosing to utilize regional pharmacies for prescription
medications resulting in savings for both the employee and PBM services.

The renewal terms of the Optum Rx agreement improve pricing discounts from the prior
agreement. AWP discount guarantees have improved for both retail and brand drugs
under the regional and narrow network. Mail service guaranteed discounts are also better
in the new agreement.

The recommendation is to accept the terms and new pricing with Optum Rx for PBM
services for the next three years. The reason for this is that the overall package and
pricing have improved and are superior to the four quoted carriers when considering
brand and generic discounts, rebates, and mail order pricing. The customer service from
Optum Rx has also been very good, and staff expects it to continue in the future. Due to
the enhanced pricing, strong customer service, and continuity for members, staff
recommends accepting the three-year proposal to remain with Optum Rx.



RESOLUTION

Authorizing the Executive Director to Enter into a Contract for Pharmacy Benefit
Management Services with Optum Rx Effective January 1, 2018

RESOLVED, by the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage Commission, that the Executive
Director is authorized to enter into a three-year contract with Optum RXx to provide
pharmacy benefit management services for District employees and pre-Medicare retirees
for the period of January 1, 2018, through December 31, 2020.



PARTNERS FOR A CLEANER ENVIRONMENT

RELATING TO:

O&M Budget Fiscal Note

Authorizing the Executive Director to Enter into a Contract for Pharmacy Benefit Management Services with Optum Rx Effective January

1, 2018

Cost Center:
Fringe Benefit

Line Item:
542 | 582

Line ltem Impact

2018 Original Budget

Carryovers or Transfers

Adjusted Budget

Estimated Annual Expenditure including Request
Anticipated Year End Balance

Actual Year to Date Expenditures Through 10/19

For unfavorable Year End Balance, identify funding source:

$10,531,514

$0

$10,531,514

$10,531,514

$0

N/A

|:|Absorbed within the Division
|:|Other Division

|:|Unallocated Reserve

Requested Anticipated
Anticipated Expenditure Timing Expenditures Savings/Revenues Net Fiscal Impact
Current Year (2018) $2,369,927 $0 $2,369,927
Subsequent $4,739,854 $0 $4,739,854
Total Cost $7,109,781 $0 $7,109,781

Comments: The requested expenditures reflect the current number of subscribers; actual costs in 2018, 2019, and 2020 may change

contingent on the actual number of subscribers.

Budget Review by:

Christine Durkin

Date

10/19/2017




Ak

PARTNERS FOR A CLEANER ENVIRONMENT Item 10

COMMISSION FILE NO: 17-116-11 DATE INTRODUCED:  November 13, 2017

INTRODUCED BY: Executive Director (Signature on File in the Office of the Commission)

REFERRED BY COMMISSION CHAIRPERSON TO: Policy, Finance, and Personnel Committee

RELATING TO:  Authorizing the Executive Director to Extend a One-year Contract for Life
Insurance Benefits to Humana Effective January 1, 2018, through
December 31, 2018

SUMMARY:

The Commission is requested to authorize the Executive Director to extend a one-year contract
beginning January 1, 2018, with Humana to provide life insurance benefits for District employees
and retirees for the period of January 1, 2018, through December 31, 2018. The District’s current
contract with Humana for life insurance benefits will expire on December 31, 2017. Humana,
the District's active and retiree life insurance carrier since 2006, offered a 10% renewal, or
$52,865 increase in premium for 2018. This is a significant decrease in last year’s renewal of
33%.

ATTACHMENTS: BACKGROUND [X] KEY ISSUES [ ] RESOLUTION [X
FISCAL NOTE[X] S/W/MBE[ ] OTHER[ ]

PFP_HumanaExtension_legislative_file.docx
10-25-17

COMMITTEE ACTION: DATE:

COMMISSION ACTION: DATE:




BACKGROUND

Authorizing the Executive Director to Extend a One-year Contract for Life Insurance
Benefits to Humana Effective January 1, 2018, through December 31, 2018

The percentage of retirees covered compared to active employees has continued to grow.
There are approximately twice as many retirees covered under the life insurance plan as
there are active employees. This is a higher than average age mix than most group
employer life insurance plans, which leads to increased risk by the insurance company
and ultimately more claims. The District’s life insurance plan has a 106% loss ratio
(premiums paid vs claims paid) over the last four years and is running at a 112% loss
ratio through the past 20 months.

The District’s benefits consultant marketed life insurance last year; however, due to the
extremely large percentage of covered retirees and the historical unfavorable loss ratio,
all carriers declined to quote. Previous marketing efforts have also generated little
interest from alternate carriers in providing life insurance coverage for the retiree
population of MMSD.

Based on the evaluation of the renewal provided by Humana, it is recommended that the
District enter into a one-year agreement with Humana to provide basic, supplemental,
and dependent life insurance benefits for MMSD employees and retirees at the monthly
rate of $1.40/$1,000 for active employees and retirees, $1.00 per unit for dependent life,
and supplemental life insurance at the following rates:

Attained Age Band

Renewal
Current
Age employee
employee rate
rate

0-29 $0.05 $0.05
30-34 $0.05 $0.05
35-39 $0.07 $0.07
40-44 $0.14 $0.14
45-49 $0.26 $0.26
50-54 $0.40 $0.40
55-59 $0.68 $0.68
60-64 $1.16 $1.16
65-69 $2.06 $2.06
70-74 $3.18 $3.18
75-79 $5.32 $5.32
80-84 $8.70 $8.70
85-89 $14.21 $14.21
90-94 $21.76 $21.76

95+ $63.17 $63.17




RESOLUTION

Authorizing the Executive Director to Extend a One-year Contract for Life Insurance
Benefits to Humana Effective January 1, 2018, through December 31, 2018

RESOLVED, by the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage Commission, that the Executive
Director is authorized to enter into a one-year contract with Humana for the period of
January 1, 2018, through December 31, 2018, to provide life insurance benefits for active
employees and retirees at the monthly rate of $1.40 per $1,000 of life insurance, $1.00
per unit of dependent life insurance, and supplemental life insurance at the following rates
per $1,000 of coverage:

Attained Age Band

Age Renewal Employee Rate
0-29 $0.05
30-34 $0.05
35-39 $0.07
40-44 $0.14
45-49 $0.26
50-54 $0.40
55-59 $0.68
60-64 $1.16
65-69 $2.06
70-47 $3.18
75-79 $5.32
80-84 $8.70
85-89 $14.21
95+ $63.17



PARTNERS FOR A CLEANER ENVIRONMENT

RELATING TO:

O&M Budget Fiscal Note

Authorizing the Executive Director to Extend a One-year Contract for Life Insurance Benefits to Humana Effective January 1, 2018,

through December 31, 2018

Cost Center: Line Item:
Fringe Benefit 543 /583

Line ltem Impact

2018 Original Budget $502,285
Carryovers or Transfers $0
Adjusted Budget $502,285
Estimated Annual Expenditure including Request $542,901
Anticipated Year End Balance ($40,616)
Actual Year to Date Expenditures Through 10/19 N/A

For unfavorable Year End Balance, identify funding source: Absorbed within the Division
|:|Other Division

|:| Unallocated Reserve

Requested Anticipated
Anticipated Expenditure Timing Expenditures Savings/Revenues Net Fiscal Impact
Current Year (2017) $0 $0 $0
Subsequent $0 $0 $0
Total Cost $0 $0 $0

Comments: The actual expenditures are contingent on the number of positions filled and the actual salary expenditures. It is anticipated

that the unfavorable variance can be absorbed within the total Fringe Benefit budget.

Budget Review by:

Christine Durkin

Date

10/19/2017




Ak

PARTNERS FOR A CLEANER ENVIRONMENT Item 11

COMMISSION FILE NO: 17-117-11 DATE INTRODUCED:  November 13, 2017

INTRODUCED BY: Executive Director (Signature on File in the Office of the Commission)

REFERRED BY COMMISSION CHAIRPERSON TO: Policy, Finance, and Personnel Committee

RELATING TO: Destruction of District Records Pursuant to Commission Policy 1-76.04,
Records Retention Policy

SUMMARY:

The Commission is requested to approve the destruction of District records pursuant to
Commission Policy 1-76.04, Records Retention Policy. During the summer of 2017, the District
conducted a review of a subset of District records with the goal of destroying those records past
their required retention period and having no more permanent legal, historical, financial, or
operational value to the District.

The District followed a procedure of review by Division Directors, the Information Governance
Manager, the Commission Secretary/Executive Administrator, and the Director of Legal
Services. A list of those records (attached) identified by District staff for destruction was sent to
the Wisconsin State Historical Society (WSHS) in accord with requirements of Wis. Stats.
819.21(8). WSHS has notified District staff that it determined the records have no value to
WSHS and can be destroyed.

ATTACHMENTS: BACKGROUND [ ] KEY ISSUES [ ] RESOLUTION [X
FISCAL NOTE[ ] S/W/MBE[ ] OTHER [X] MMSD Boxes for Destruction in 2017

PFP_RecordsDestruction2017_legislative_file.docx
10-25-17

COMMITTEE ACTION: DATE:

COMMISSION ACTION: DATE:




RESOLUTION

Destruction of District Records Pursuant to Commission Policy 1-76.04, Records
Retention Policy

RESOLVED, by the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage Commission, that the Executive
Director is authorized to destroy the District records on the attached list of “MMSD Boxes
for Destruction in 2017”, pursuant to Commission Policy 1-76.04, Records Retention
Policy.



MMSD Boxes for Destruction in 2017
Boxes Offered to the WI State Historical Society

Box Number Department Box Content Summary
36-4143 PROCUREMENT PURCHASE REQUISITIONS
36-4144 PROCUREMENT PURCHASE REQUISITIONS
36-1017 PROCUREMENT PURCHASE REQUISITIONS
36-4145 PROCUREMENT PURCHASE REQUISITIONS
36-3110 PROCUREMENT PURCHASE REQUISITIONS
36-3099 PROCUREMENT PURCHASE REQUISITIONS
36-5585 PROCUREMENT RECEIVING REPORTS
36-450 PROCUREMENT RECEIVING REPORTS
36-473 PROCUREMENT PURCHASE REQUISITIONS
36-4867 PROCUREMENT PURCHASE REQUISITIONS
36-4934 PROCUREMENT CORRESPONDENCE
36-640 PROCUREMENT RECEIVING REPORTS
36-641 PROCUREMENT RECEIVING REPORTS
36-642 PROCUREMENT PURCHASE REQUISITIONS
36-914 PROCUREMENT PURCHASE REQUISITIONS
36-1018 PROCUREMENT PURCHASE REQUISITIONS
36-4935 PROCUREMENT CORRESPONDENCE
36-3686 INFORMATION SERVICES DEPARTMENT BUDGET & UNOFFICIAL RFPs
36-1757 INFORMATION SERVICES TELEPHONE BILLS & UNOFFICIAL RFPs
12259 INFORMATION SERVICES SOFTWARE AND SOFTWARE REFERENCE
12329 INFORMATION SERVICES COMPUTER SYSTEM PROJECT FILES
14924 INFORMATION SERVICES UNOFFICIAL PURCHASE REQUISITIONS OR PURCHASE ORDERS
36-7128 INFORMATION SERVICES REFERENCE MATERIALS
36-8501 INFORMATION SERVICES UNOFFICIAL MANAGEMENT TASK ORDERS
36-8504 INFORMATION SERVICES UNOFFICIAL MANAGEMENT TASK ORDERS
36-8505 INFORMATION SERVICES UNOFFICIAL MANAGEMENT TASK ORDERS
36-8506 INFORMATION SERVICES UNOFFICIAL MANAGEMENT TASK ORDERS
36-8507 INFORMATION SERVICES UNOFFICIAL MANAGEMENT TASK ORDERS
36-8511 INFORMATION SERVICES UNOFFICIAL MANAGEMENT TASK ORDERS
36-4303 INFORMATION SERVICES SOFTWARE AND SOFTWARE REFERENCE
36-4931 INFORMATION SERVICES TELEPHONE BILLS & DEPARTMENT BUDGET
36-1999 JONES ISLAND MAINTENANCE REFERENCE MATERIAL * 7/
36-2897 JONES ISLAND MAINTENANCE REFERENCE MATERIAL
36-3000 JONES ISLAND MAINTENANCE REFERENCE MATERIAL
36-2896 JONES ISLAND MAINTENANCE REFERENCE MATERIAL
36-2726 SOUTH SHORE MAINTENANCE REFERENCE MATERIAL/
CONFERENCE AND SEMINARS ATTENDED & UNOFFICIAL
13398 SOUTH SHORE MAINTENANCE OPERATING REPORTS
36-128 SOUTH SHORE MAINTENANCE REFERENCE MATERIAL & UNOFFICIAL TELEPHONE DIRECTORY ,
36-2391 LEGAL SERVICES REFERENCE MATERIAL
36-2400 LEGAL SERVICES REFERENCE MATERIAL
36-2744 LEGAL SERVICES REFERENCE MATERIAL
36-2390 LEGAL SERVICES REFERENCE MATERIAL
36-2463 { EGAL SERVICES REFERENCE MATERIAL
36-2465 LEGAL SERVICES REFERENCE MATERIAL
36-2462 LEGAL SERVICES REFERENCE MATERIAL
36-2464 LEGAL SERVICES REFERENCE MATERIAL
36-2407 LEGAL SERVICES REFERENCE MATERIAL
36-2487 LEGAL SERVICES REFERENCE MATERIAL
36-2387 LEGAL SERVICES REFERENCE MATERIAL
19888 RESEARCH AND CENTRAL LABORATORY |REFERENCE MATERIAL
19891 RESEARCH AND CENTRAL LABORATORY |REFERENCE MATERIAL
16673 RESEARCH AND CENTRAL LABORATORY |REFERENCE MATERIAL
19892 RESEARCH AND CENTRAL LABORATORY |REFERENCE MATERIAL

Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District, p. 1 of 3




MMSD Boxes for Destruction in 2017

Boxes Offered to the WI State Historical Sociéty

Box Number Department Box Content Summary
36-3091 ACCOUNTING TIME DISTRIBUTION REPORTS
36-3095 ACCOUNTING TIME DISTRIBUTION REPORTS
36-3096 ACCOUNTING TIME DISTRIBUTION REPORTS
36-3060 ACCOUNTING TIME DISTRIBUTION REPORTS
36-3094 ACCOUNTING TIME DISTRIBUTION REPORTS
36-4141 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES

36-514 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-2970 ACCOUNTING CANCELLED CHECKS

36-2976 ACCOUNTING CANCELLED CHECKS

36-4135 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-2971 ACCOUNTING CANCELLED CHECKS
36-2978 ACCOUNTING CANCELLED CHECKS
36-2979 ACCOUNTING CANCELLED CHECKS
36-2980 ACCOUNTING CANCELLED CHECKS

36-4148 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-2943 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-2944 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-2945 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-2948 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-2972 ACCOUNTING CANCELLED CHECKS
36-2984 ACCOUNTING CANCELLED CHECKS
36-4140 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-603 ACCOUNTING CANCELLED CHECKS

36-2910 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-2911 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-2913 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-2916 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-2918 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-2958 ACCOUNTING CANCELLED CHECKS
36-2959 ACCOUNTING CANCELLED CHECKS

36-604 ACCOUNTING CANCELLED CHECKS

36-613 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-614 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-2919 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-2921 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-2924 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-2960 ACCOUNTING CANCELLED CHECKS

36-2962 ACCOUNTING CANCELLED CHECKS

36-3102 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-4147 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-201 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-202 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-203 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-204 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-205 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-207 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-208 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-2963 ACCOUNTING CANCELLED CHECKS

36-2964 ACCOUNTING CANCELLED CHECKS

36-4138 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-206 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-209 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-211 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-212 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES

Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District, p. 2 of 3




MMSD Boxes for Destruction in 2017

Boxes Offered to the WI State Historical Society

Box Number Department Box Content Summary
36-213 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-214 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-215 ACCOUNTING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES
36-486 ACCOUNTING PAYROLL REGISTER
36-1104 HUMAN RESOURCES REFERENCE MATERIAL
36-1763 HUMAN RESOURCES SALARY PLAN IMPLEMENTATION
36-3265 HUMAN RESOURCES SALARY PLAN IMPLEMENTATION
36-957 HUMAN RESOURCES SALARY PLAN IMPLEMENTATION
36-1267 HUMAN RESOURCES CONFERENCE AND SEMINARS REFERENCE MATERIAL
36-1713 HUMAN RESOURCES UNION CONTRACT NEGOTIATIONS
36-1715 HUMAN RESOURCES UNION CONTRACT NEGOTIATIONS
36-1765 HUMAN RESOURCES SALARY PLAN IMPLEMENTATION
36-2345 HUMAN RESOURCES SALARY PLAN IMPLEMENTATION
36-3266 HUMAN RESOURCES REFERENCE MATERIAL

Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District, p. 3 of 3




PARTNERS FOR A CLEANER ENVIRONMENT Iltem 12

COMMISSION FILE NO: 17-118-11 DATE INTRODUCED:  November 13, 2017

INTRODUCED BY: Executive Director (Signature on File in the Office of the Commission)

REFERRED BY COMMISSION CHAIRPERSON TO: Policy, Finance, and Personnel Committee

RELATING TO:  An Agreement for the Establishment of Sister Utilities Relationship between
the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District and the Beijing Water
Authority of the People’s Republic of China

SUMMARY:

In 2009, the United Nations designated Milwaukee as a Global Compact City as part of a strategy
to encourage city and regional governments to collaborate with the private and public sectors to
address complex global challenges at the local level. As a member of the United Nations Cities
Programme, the Milwaukee region is expected to share its knowledge, expertise, and
innovations related to water technology with the rest of the world.

The Water Council, of which the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District is a member, has a
mission of collaborating with global organizations that support common goals for freshwater
research, innovation, education, and business development. The Water Council has been
actively engaged in the Cities Programme and has facilitated the development of a relationship
between the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District and the Beijing Water Authority of the
People’s Republic of China.

On November 29, 2017, the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District's Executive Director
Kevin L. Shafer will be featured as a keynote speaker at a conference entitled, “One Water, One
World: The US-China Conference on Water and Sponge Cities,” in Beijing, China. A main
objective of the conference is to showcase the work of a consortium of Wisconsin water
companies, including A.O. Smith, Rockwell Automation, and Rexnord, in successfully
addressing water challenges through a complete water cycle process. As part of this exchange,
the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District and the Beijing Water Authority will enter into a
Sister Utilities relationship consistent with the attached Commission resolution.

ATTACHMENTS: BACKGROUND [ ] KEY ISSUES [ ] RESOLUTION [X
FISCAL NOTE[ ] S/W/MBE[ ] OTHERI[ ]

PFP_Sister_Utilities_Agreement_legislative_file.docx
10-31-17

COMMITTEE ACTION: DATE:

COMMISSION ACTION: DATE:




RESOLUTION

An Agreement for the Establishment of Sister Utilities Relationship between the
Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District and the Beijing Water Authority of the
People’s Republic of China

WHEREAS, the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District of the United States of
America and the Beijing Water Authority of the People’s Republic of China have achieved
the following agreement through friendly negotiation and herewith express the intention
to promote the friendship and understanding between their respective organizations; and

WHEREAS, the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District and the Beijing Water
Authority agree to support and encourage opportunities for the mutual benefit of their
metropolitan areas by exploring practical exchanges in the water resource protection
industry; and

WHEREAS, the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District and the Beijing Water
Authority of the People’s Republic of China agree to support the exchange of ideas and
best management practices related to the protection of public health, the management of
water resources, economic development, and the restoration of waterways and natural
habitat; and

WHEREAS, the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District and Beijing Water Authority
of the People’s Republic of China, sharing a common interest in water resources
management and environmental protection and a desire to promote mutual
understanding among the residents they serve, do hereby proclaim themselves Sister
Utilities beginning on November 13, 2017, the date of the Milwaukee Metropolitan
Sewerage District Commission resolution establishing the Sister Utilities relationship
becomes effective.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage
Commission, that the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District does hereby proclaim
itself a Sister Utility with the Beijing Water Authority of the People’s Republic of China.



POLICY, FINANCE & PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING
November 13, 2017
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

17-002-01

Monthly Reports



November 2017

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat
1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 VETERAN’S 11
DAY (OBSERVED)-
MMSD OFFICES
CLOSED
12 13 Operations 14 15 16 17 18
Committee-9:00 a.m.
PF&P Committee-
9:05 a.m.
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
THANKSGIVING- | MMSD OFFICES
MMSD OFFICES CLOSED
CLOSED
26 27 Commission-9:00 | 28 29 30

a.m.




	PFP COMMITTEE COVER PAGE
	11.13.17 PFP Agenda
	10.09.17 PFP Proceedings
	Item 4-2018 Capital Charges to Nonmember Communities
	Item 4-Attachment

	Item 5-Cost Recovery Procedures Manual Update
	Item 5-Attachment

	Item 6-Acquisition Plat-LFG Pigging Station
	Item 6-Attachment

	Item 7-Two Series of GO Sewerage System Promissory Notes
	Item 7-Attachment 1
	Item 7-Attachment 2

	Item 8-Retiree Prescription Drug & Supplemental Medical Insurance Renewal
	Item 8-Fiscal Note

	Item 9-Pharmacy Benefit Renewal
	Item 9-Fiscal Note

	Item 10-Life Insurance Renewal
	Item 10-Fiscal Note

	Item 11-Records Destruction
	Item 11-Attachment

	Item 12-Sister Utilities Establishment
	ED Report-PFP Committee
	November Commission Calendar

